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Application: Hellenic Classical Charter Schools-Park
Slope
Joy Petrakos - Joy.Petrakos@hccs-nys.org
2024-2025 Annual Report

Summary

ID: 0000000095
Status: Annual Report Submission

Entry 1 – School Information and Cover Page
Completed - Jul 21 2025

Instructions

Required of ALL Charter Schools

Each Annual Report begins with a completed School Information and Cover Page. The information is collected in a
survey format within the Annual Report Portal. When entering information in the portal, some of the following items
may not appear, depending on your authorizer and/or your responses to related items.

Entry 1 – School Information and Cover Page

(New schools that were not open for instruction for the 2024-2025 school year are not required to complete or

submit an annual report this year). 

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the other tasks

assigned to you by your school's authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this cover page task,

please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2025) or you may not be assigned the correct

tasks.

BASIC INFORMATION

a. LEGAL SCHOOL NAME (as chartered)

(Select name from the drop down menu)

Hellenic Classical Charter School - Park Slope
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b. Unofficial or Popular School Name

HCCS-PS

c. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of June 30th, 2025)

Please select the correct authorizer as of June 30, 2025 or you may not be assigned the correct tasks.

BOARD OF REGENTS

c. School Unionized

Is your charter school unionized?

No

d. District/CSD of Location

New York City Community School District #15

e. Date of Approved Initial Charter

Feb 5 2005

f. Date School First Opened for Instruction

Sep 8 2005
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g. Approved School Mission

(Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-authorized schools only)

The Hellenic Classical Charter Schools will provide a diverse student body with a rigorous education in a dynamic

environment. Using a standards-based curriculum, enriched with the Greek and Latin languages, students will

engage in dialogue using the Socratic Method to become critical thinkers. Students will become college and career

ready and well-prepared to succeed and contribute to the global community as responsible citizens.
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h. Approved Key Design Elements

(Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-authorized schools only)

1. A rigorous classical education that is rich in challenging content – HCCS-PS will provide rigorous instruction in a

classical education model that uses standards-based curriculum, didactic instruction, coaching, and intensive

academic support. HCCS-PS will blend the Paideia Model for instruction that mixes the rigors of a classical

education with inclusive teaching and learning with the workshop model, which is based on Howard Gardner’s

theory of multiple intelligences and Benjamin Bloom’s work regarding strategies to help students engage in the

highest levels of thinking—i.e. analysis, synthesis and evaluation. Because this proposed model differentiates and

individualizes instruction, the model is highly effective with at-risk populations, including ELL students, Title I

students, special education students, and academically gifted students.

2. Supplementing instruction with classical study of the Greek and Latin languages, as well as history, art and other

cultural and classical studies - The Greek instruction program, which includes acquisition of the Greek language

and the study of Greek history and culture within a rigorous academic model that includes the standards-based

curriculum, will provide students with unique and outstanding educational experiences that support their growth

and improve their competitiveness in the global economy. We will implement this program in consultation with the

Greek Ministry of Education, which has provided support for HCCS-Park Slope over the past 20 years. The

alignment of the Greek program curriculum with the ELA curriculum will ensure that the reading, writing and

language arts instruction in English and in Greek are complimentary. In short, because of the Greek and Latin

studies, we maintain that our graduates will be familiar with the roots of over 90% of the words in the English

language.

3. Preparing students for long-term academic success - HCCS-Park Slope will focus on the mission of college and

career readiness for our students and will continue to work with these students and families to help them

understand the high school admissions process as well as college preparation, and other practices that will support

them in preparing for, selecting and applying for entrance into high quality high schools.

i. School Website Address

http://www.hccs-nys.org

http://www.hccs-nys.org/
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j. Authorized Charter Enrollment for 2024-2025 School Year

498

k. Actual Enrollment on June 30, 2025, Excluding Pre-K Program Enrollment

498

l. Grades Served

Grades served during the 2024-2025 school year (exclude Pre-K program students):

Responses Selected:

Kindergarten

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

m. Charter Management Organization/Educational Management Organization

Do you have a Charter Management Organization?

No

http://www.nysed.gov/common/nysed/files/programs/charter-schools/definecmo.pdf
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FACILITIES INFORMATION

n. FACILITIES: Owned, rented, or leased to educate students

Will the school maintain or operate multiple sites in 2025-2026?

No, just one site.

     

School Site 1 (Primary)

n1. SCHOOL SITES

Please provide information on Site 1 for the upcoming school year.

Physical

Address

Phone

Number

District/CSD Grades

Served at Site

for 2024-2025

School Year

(K-5, 6-9, etc.)

Grades to be

Served at Site

for 2025-2026

school year

(K-5, 6-9, etc.)

Receives

Rental

Assistance for

Which Grades

(If yes, enter

the

appropriate

grades. If no,

enter No).

Site 1

646 5th
Avenue,
Brooklyn, NY
11215

7184990957

New York City
Community
School District
#15

K-8 K-8 No
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n1a. Please provide the contact information for Site 1.

Name Title Work Phone Alternate Phone Email Address

School Leader Natasha Caban Principal 718-499-0957 718-499-0958
NCaban@hccs-
nys.org

Operational
Leader

Joy Petrakos
Chief of
Operations

718-499-0957 718-499-0958
Joy.Petrakos@h
ccs-nys.org

Compliance
Contact

Joy Petrakos
Chief of
Operations

718-499-0957 718-499-0958
Joy.Petrakos@h
ccs-nys.org

Complaint
Contact

Joy Petrakos
Chief of
Operations

718-499-0957 718-499-0958
Joy.Petrakos@h
ccs-nys.org

DASA
Coordinator

Anastasia
Etimos

Dean of
Guidance and
Student Support

718-499-0957 718-499-0958
AEtimos@hccs-
nys.org

Phone Contact
for After Hours
Emergencies

Joy Petrakos
Chief of
Operations

718-499-0957 718-499-0958
Joy.Petrakos@h
ccs-nys.org

n1b. Is site 1 in public space or in private space?

Private Space

n1c. Is site 1 in a co-located or not in a co-located facility?

Responses Selected:

Not Co-Located

mailto:NCaban@hccs-nys.org
mailto:Joy.Petrakos@hccs-nys.org
mailto:Joy.Petrakos@hccs-nys.org
mailto:Joy.Petrakos@hccs-nys.org
mailto:AEtimos@hccs-nys.org
mailto:Joy.Petrakos@hccs-nys.org
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IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC

n1e. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection Report for school site 1 if

located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC .

Certificate of Occupancy and Fire Inspection.   Provide a copy of a current and non-expired certificate of

occupancy (if outside NYC or in private space in NYC). For schools that are not in district space (NYC co-

locations), provide a copy of a current and non-expired certificate of occupancy, and a copy of the current

annual fire inspection results, which should be dated on or after July 1, 2025.

Fire inspection certificates must be updated annually. For the upcoming school year 2025-2026, please submit

a current fire inspection certificate.

If the fire inspection certificate will expire between the August 1, 2025 submission of the Annual Report and

the November 3 Annual Report submission, please submit the new certificate with the Annual Report entries

due no later than 11:59 PM on November 3, 2025.

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO)

Certificate of Occupancy 12.27.18 Final CO.pdf

Filename: Certificate of Occupancy 12.27.18 Final CO.pdf Size: 35.8 kB

Site 1 Fire Inspection Report

This is required, marked optional for administrative purposes.

2025 Annual Fire Inspection.pdf

Filename: 2025 Annual Fire Inspection.pdf Size: 1.9 MB

o. List of owned, rented, or leased facilities not used to educate students and the purpose of each.

Separate by semi-colon (;)

N/A

https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/rg/258502448/8856591502/Certificate%20of%20Occupancy%2012.27.18%20Final%20CO.pdf
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/rg/258502448/8864779681/2025%20Annual%20Fire%20Inspection.pdf
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p1. Total Number of School Calendar Days

181

p2. Total Number of Anticipated Hours of Instruction by Month (Entries are required for all months. Enter a zero

for months with no instructional hours.)

July 2025 0

August 2025 0

September 2025 141

October 2025 149

November 2025 126

December 2025 126

January 2026 141

February 2026 112

March 2026 156

April 2026 112

May 2026 141

June 2026 141

CHARTER REVISIONS DURING THE 2024-2025 SCHOOL YEAR
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q. Summary of Material and Non-Material Charter Revisions submitted or approved since August 1, 2024,

including updates to the school’s board of trustees’ by-laws, enrollment policy, discipline policy, or complaint

policy. 

Please note, listing the revisions here does not constitute a request. Schools are advised to seek revision requests

through their authorizer directly.

Does the school have any material or non-material revision requests that have been submitted or approved since

August 1, 2024?

No

ATTESTATIONS

r. Name/Position of Person Completing/Submitting the 2024-2025 Annual Report. (To write type in a phone

number with an extension, please use this format: 123-456-7890-3. The dash and number 3 at the end of the

phone number refers to the individual's phone extension.   Do not type in the work extension or the

abbreviation for it - just the dash and the extension number after the phone number).

Name Joy Petrakos

Position Chief of Operations

Phone/Extension 718-499-0957

Email Joy.Petrakos@hccs-nys.org

mailto:Joy.Petrakos@hccs-nys.org
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s. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board President) below attest that all

of the information contained herein is truthful and accurate and that this charter school is in compliance with

all aspects of its charter, and with all pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We

understand that if any information in any part of this report is found to have been deliberately misrepresented,

this will constitute grounds for the revocation of our charter.

Click YES to  agree and then use the mouse on your PC or the stylus on your mobile device to sign your

name).

Responses Selected:

Yes

As outlined in ENTRY 7 (Employee Fingerprint Requirements Attestation):

Our E-Signatures (not digital signatures) (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board

President) below attest that our school has reviewed, understands and will comply with the employee

clearance and fingerprint requirements as outlined in Entry 7 and found in the NYSED CSO Fingerprint

Clearance Oct 2019 Memo. Click YES to agree.

Responses Selected:

Yes

Signature, Head of Charter School

(If you are not signing the application now, please click "Clear" on both signature fields before saving this

task or else the system will return an error.)

https://www.nysed.gov/sites/default/files/programs/charter-schools/employeefingerprintoct19.pdf
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Signature, President of the Board of Trustees

(If you are not signing the application now, please click "Clear" on both signature fields before saving this

task or else the system will return an error.)

Date

Jul 21 2025

Thank you.

Entry 2 – Links to Critical Documents on School Website
Completed - Jul 24 2025

Instructions

Required of ALL Charter Schools (Note that SUNY-authorized charter schools are not required to submit item 4:
Authorizer-approved Dignity for All Students Act (DASA) policy  and Authorizer-approved School Discipline
Policy)

By law, each charter school is required to maintain certain notices and policies listed on its website. All documents
must be readily found on the school's website and publicly accessible. Please insert the link to the page on the
school’s website where each document can be accessed. DO NOT provide a direct link to a Google document.

1. Current Annual Report (i.e., 2024-2025 Annual Report);[1]
2. Board meeting notices, agendas, and documents, including board meeting minutes;
3. New York State School Report Card - This report captures school-level enrollment and demographic

information, staff qualifications, electronic student records, and attendance rates, as prescribed by New York
State law.[2] Even if there is no school data yet reported, a direct web link to the most recent New York State
School Report Card for the charter school must be provided.

4. Authorizer-approved DASA Policy and Authorizer-approved School Discipline Policy (For Regents, NYCDOE,
and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY); 

5. District-wide safety plan, not a building-level safety plan (as per the July 2023 Emergency Response Plan
Memo – Charter Schools Only);  

6. Authorizer-approved FOIL Policy; and
7. Subject matter list of FOIL records (e.g., see NYSED Subject Matter List) 

[1] Each charter school is required to make the Annual Report publicly available by August 1 and to post on their
respective charter school website. Each school should post an updated and complete version to include

http://data.nysed.gov/
https://www.nysed.gov/student-support-services/school-safety-plans
http://www.nysed.gov/common/nysed/files/2014%20Subject%20Matter%20List.pdf
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accountability data and financial statements that are not or may not be available until after the August deadline (i.e.,
repost when financials have been submitted in November.)

[2] SRC data is included in the reporting requirements for New York charter schools in 8 NYCRR 119.3.

Entry 2 – Links to Critical Documents on School Website
School Name:   Hellenic Classical Charter Schools-Park Slope  

https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/admin/awards/278680/workflow/#_ftnref2
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Required of ALL Charter Schools (Note that SUNY-authorized charter schools are not required to submit item 4:

Authorizer-approved Dignity for All Students Act (DASA) policy and Authorizer-Approved School Discipline

Policy)

By law, each charter school is required to maintain certain notices and policies listed on its website. Please insert the

link from the school’s website for each of the items. All links must be readily found on the school’s website.

New York State Report Card

Emergency Response Plan Memo

NYSED Subject Matter List

Link to Documents

1. Current Annual Report (i.e., 2024-2025 Annual
Report)

https://www.hccs-nys.org/annual-reports

2. Board meeting notices, agendas, and documents,
including board meeting minutes

https://www.hccs-nys.org/board-of-trustees

3. New York State School Report Card. This report
captures school-level enrollment and demographic
information, staff qualifications, electronic student
records, and attendance rates, as prescribed by New
York State law. Even if there is no school data yet
reported, a direct web link to the most recent New York
State School Report Card for the charter school must
be provided.

https://data.nysed.gov/profile.php?
instid=800000058308

4a. Authorizer-approved DASA Policy (For Regents,
NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter Schools
ONLY)

https://34001662-ea44-4444-b408-
d9a8051e1289.filesusr.com/ugd/8221cc_ef64d2926c8
14181a2772ec2c1d28fc9.pdf

4b. Authorizer-approved School Discipline Policy (For
Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized
Charter Schools ONLY)

https://34001662-ea44-4444-b408-
d9a8051e1289.filesusr.com/ugd/8221cc_d7b62ad6d07
64d02a78737492b4aede5.pdf

5. District-wide safety plan, not a building level safety
plan (as per the July 2023 Emergency Response Plan
Memo)

https://www.hccs-
nys.org/_files/ugd/77631d_aa1416cebf2541508eb957
0f20b0ef52.pdf

6. Authorizer-approved FOIL Policy
https://34001662-ea44-4444-b408-
d9a8051e1289.filesusr.com/ugd/8221cc_386d3335831
74a55b0a499119b166fab.pdf

https://data.nysed.gov/
https://www.p12.nysed.gov/sss/documents/EmergencyResponsePlanMemo2021-22_final.pdf
http://www.nysed.gov/common/nysed/files/2014%20Subject%20Matter%20List.pdf
https://www.hccs-nys.org/annual-reports
https://www.hccs-nys.org/board-of-trustees
https://data.nysed.gov/profile.php?instid=800000058308
https://34001662-ea44-4444-b408-d9a8051e1289.filesusr.com/ugd/8221cc_ef64d2926c814181a2772ec2c1d28fc9.pdf
https://34001662-ea44-4444-b408-d9a8051e1289.filesusr.com/ugd/8221cc_d7b62ad6d0764d02a78737492b4aede5.pdf
https://www.hccs-nys.org/_files/ugd/77631d_aa1416cebf2541508eb9570f20b0ef52.pdf
https://34001662-ea44-4444-b408-d9a8051e1289.filesusr.com/ugd/8221cc_386d333583174a55b0a499119b166fab.pdf
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7. Subject matter list of FOIL records (e.g., see NYSED
Subject Matter List)

https://www.hccs-
nys.org/_files/ugd/77631d_f2035ce26369436da9261b
793bf6c566.pdf

It is the school's responsibility to ensure that if a policy appears in more than one place on the website,

including as part of the family handbook, that the policy versions are consistent and up to date.

Responses Selected:

Yes, the website has been reviewed to ensure that policies are consistent and up to date.

Thank you. 

Entry 3 – Board of Trustees Membership Table
Completed - Jul 21 2025

Instructions

Required of ALL charter schools
ALL charter schools or education corporations governing multiple schools must complete the Board of Trustees
Membership Table within the online portal. Please be sure to include and identify parents who are members of the
Board of Trustees and indicate whether parents are voting or non-voting members.

Entry 3 – Board of Trustees Membership Table

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide information for VOTING trustees only.  

2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide information

for all VOTING and NON-VOTING trustees.

     

Authorizer:

Who is the authorizer of your charter school?

Board of Regents

https://www.hccs-nys.org/_files/ugd/77631d_f2035ce26369436da9261b793bf6c566.pdf
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1. 2024-2025 Board Member Information (Enter info for each BOT member)

Voting

Trustee

Name

Trustee

Email

Address

Position

on the

Board

Committe

e

Affiliation

(s)

Voting

Member

Per By-

Laws

(Y/N)

Number

of

Complet

ed Terms

Served

Start

Date of

Current

Term

(MM/DD/

YYYY)

End

Date of

Current

Term

(MM/DD/

YYYY)

Board

Meetings

Attended

During

2024-

2025

1
Charles
Capetan
akis

cc@dhcl
egal.com

Chair

Educatio
n,
Finance,
Facility

Yes 6
07/01/20
23

06/30/20
26

11

2
Harvey
Newman

hadakam
i@yahoo
.com

Secretar
y

Educatio
n Chair

Yes 6
07/01/20
23

06/30/20
26

10

3
Nikolaos
Leonard
os

nickl@da
fnonas.c
om

Treasure
r

Finance
Facility

Yes 6
07/01/20
23

06/30/20
26

11

4
Effie
Lekas

effieleka
s@hotm
ail.com

Trustee/
Member

Educatio
n

Yes 6
07/01/20
23

06/30/20
26

12

5
Grazia
Svokos

grsvokos
@gmail.c
om

Trustee/
Member

Educatio
n

Yes 1
07/01/20
23

06/30/20
26

9

6
Dean
Angelak
os

hdangel
akos@g
mail.com

Trustee/
Member

Finance
Facility

Yes 5
07/01/20
23

06/30/20
26

5 or less

7
Bianca
Rajpersa
ud

br@dhcl
egal.com

Trustee/
Member

Finance
Facility

Yes 1
07/01/20
23

06/30/20
26

11

8
Spiros
Moustak
as

smousta
kas27@
gmail.co
m

Trustee/
Member

Finance
Educatio
n

Yes 1
07/01/20
23

06/30/20
26

10

9
Liana
Theodor
atou

hlt1@ny
u.edu

Trustee/
Member

Educatio
n

Yes 6
07/01/20
23

06/30/20
26

10

mailto:cc@dhclegal.com
mailto:hadakami@yahoo.com
mailto:nickl@dafnonas.com
mailto:effielekas@hotmail.com
mailto:grsvokos@gmail.com
mailto:hdangelakos@gmail.com
mailto:br@dhclegal.com
mailto:smoustakas27@gmail.com
mailto:hlt1@nyu.edu
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1a. Are there more than 9 members of the Board of Trustees?

Yes

1b. Board Member Information

Voting

Trustee

Name

Trustee

Email

Address

Position

on the

Board

Committe

e

Affiliation

(s)

Voting

Member

Per By-

Laws

(Y/N)

Number

of Terms

Served

Start

Date of

Current

Term

(MM/DD/

YYYY)

End

Date of

Current

Term

(MM/DD/

YYYY)

Board

Meetings

Attended

During

2024-

2025

10
Nik
Mathews

NMathew
s@orrick.
com

Trustee/
Member

Finance
Facility

Yes 6
07/01/20
23

06/30/20
26

5 or less

11

12

13

14

15

1c. Are there more than 15 members of the Board of Trustees?

No

2. Number of board meetings conducted in 2024-2025

12

mailto:NMathews@orrick.com
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3. Number of board meetings scheduled for the 2025-2026 school year

12

4. INFORMATION ABOUT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide response relative to VOTING Trustees only.  

REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide a response relative to all

trustees. 

a. Total number of Voting Members on June 30, 2025 10

b. Total number of Voting Members added during the

2024-2025 school year
0

c. Total number of Voting Members who left the board

during 2024-2025 school year
0

d. Total Maximum Number of Voting Members in 2024-

2025, as set by the board in by-laws, resolution, or

minutes

11

e. Board members attending 8 or fewer meetings during

2024-2025
2
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5. INFORMATION ABOUT NON-VOTING MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES (REGENTS, NYCDOE, and

BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED ONLY)

a. Total number of Non-Voting Members on June 30,

2025
0

b. Total number of Non-Voting Members added during

the 2024-2025 school year
0

c. Total number of Non-Voting Members who left the

board during the 2024-2025 school year
0

d. Total Maximum Number of Non-Voting members in

2024-2025, as set by the board in by-laws, resolution,

or minutes

0

Thank you.

Entry 4 – Board of Trustees Disclosure of Financial Interest Form
Completed - Jul 29 2025

Instructions
Required of ALL Charter Schools

Each member of the charter school’s Board of Trustees who served on a charter school education corporation
governing one or more charter schools for any period during the 2024-2025 school year must complete and sign a
Trustee Disclosure of Financial Interest Form due no later than 11:59 PM on August 1, 2025. Acceptable signature
formats include:

Digitally certified PDF signature (i.e., DocuSign)
Manual signature (1. download to print, 2. manually sign, 3. scan signed document to PDF, and 4. upload
into portal)

All completed forms must be collected and uploaded in PDF format for each individual member. The education
corporation is responsible for ensuring that each member who served on the board during the 2024-2025
school year completes the form. 

Charter schools MUST submit the latest version of the form. Forms completed from past years will not be accepted. 

Trustees serving on an education corporation that governs more than one school are not required to complete a
separate disclosure for each school governed by the education corporation. In the Trustee Disclosure of Financial
Interest Form, trustees must disclose information relevant to any of the schools served by the governing education
corporation. 

Charles Capetanakis Board Disclosure

Filename: Charles_Capetanakis_Board_Disclosure.pdf Size: 118.2 kB

Nick Leonardos Board Disclosure

Filename: Nick_Leonardos_Board_Disclosure.pdf Size: 105.0 kB

https://www.nysed.gov/sites/default/files/programs/charter-schools/annual-report-current-former-trustee-financial-disclosure-form.pdf
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/294820700/32953607/Charles_Capetanakis_Board_Disclosure.pdf
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/294820700/32953609/Nick_Leonardos_Board_Disclosure.pdf
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Effie Lekas Board Disclosure

Filename: Effie_Lekas_Board_Disclosure.pdf Size: 119.5 kB

Grazia Svokos Board Disclosure

Filename: Grazia_Svokos_Board_Disclosure.pdf Size: 428.0 kB

Bianca Rajpersaud Board Disclosure

Filename: Bianca_Rajpersaud_Board_Disclosure.pdf Size: 350.5 kB

Nik Mathews Board Disclosure

Filename: Nik_Mathews_Board_Disclosure.pdf Size: 538.9 kB

Spiros Moustaka Board Disclosure

Filename: Spiros_Moustaka_Board_Disclosure.pdf Size: 492.0 kB

Harvey Newman Board Disclosure

Filename: Harvey_Newman_Board_Disclosure.pdf Size: 112.2 kB

Liana Theodoratou Board Disclosure

Filename: Liana_Theodoratou_Board_Disclosure.pdf Size: 422.9 kB

Dean Angelakos Board Disclosure

Filename: Dean_Angelakos_Board_Disclosure.pdf Size: 113.2 kB

Entry 5 – Board Meeting Minutes
Completed - Jul 21 2025

Instructions
Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Schools ONLY 

Schools must upload a complete set of final monthly board meeting minutes (July 2024-June 2025), which should
match the number of meetings held during the 2024-2025 school year, as indicated in the above table. The minutes
provided must be the final version approved by the school’s Board of Trustees AND must be posted on the school’s
website. Board meeting minutes may be uploaded individually or as one single combined file. Board meeting minutes
must be submitted no later than 11:59 PM on August 1, 2025.

SCHOOL BOARD MINUTES 2024-2025

Filename: SCHOOL_BOARD_MINUTES_2024-2025_O25ncWp.pdf Size: 1.8 MB

Entry 6 – Enrollment & Retention
Completed - Jul 31 2025

Instructions
Required of ALL Charter Schools

Describe the good faith efforts the charter school has made in 2024-2025 toward meeting targets to attract and
retain the enrollment of students with disabilities (SWD), English language learners (ELL), and students who are

https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/294820700/32953611/Effie_Lekas_Board_Disclosure.pdf
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/294820700/32953612/Grazia_Svokos_Board_Disclosure.pdf
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/294820700/32953613/Bianca_Rajpersaud_Board_Disclosure.pdf
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/294820700/32953615/Nik_Mathews_Board_Disclosure.pdf
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/294820700/32953984/Spiros_Moustaka_Board_Disclosure.pdf
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/294820700/32957158/Harvey_Newman_Board_Disclosure.pdf
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/294820700/32957159/Liana_Theodoratou_Board_Disclosure.pdf
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/294820700/32986932/Dean_Angelakos_Board_Disclosure.pdf
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/294820701/32911218/SCHOOL_BOARD_MINUTES_2024-2025_O25ncWp.pdf
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economically disadvantaged (ED). In addition, describe the school’s plans for meeting or making progress toward
meeting its enrollment and retention targets in 2025-2026. 

Entry 6 – Enrollment and Retention of Special Populations
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Good Faith Efforts to Meet Recruitment Targets (Attract)

Describe Recruitment Efforts in

2024-2025

Describe Recruitment Plans in 2025-

2026

Students with Disabilities

HCCS-PS continues to provide
outreach to families documenting
our Special Education program and
the services the school offers to
Students with Disabilities. Our goal
is to engage parents of these
students, encourage them to apply
to the admissions lottery and then,
for those who gain entry, work with
the parents and the Pre-K providers
to help these students transition into
our school. Along with the
Committee on Special Education
and Committee on PreSchool
Special Education 8 Office.
HCCS-PS holds a preference in our
lottery for Students with Disabilities.
Our Dean of Special Education
attends each open house to speak
to our
prospective families which takes
place throughout various times of
the school year.
As a school we work to build our
provider's knowledge each year by
providing professional development
and training to best meet the needs
of our schools population. HCCS-PS
are members of the NYC Charter
Schools Collaborative for Inclusive
Education, who supports our
teachers with professional
development. HCCS-PS has a 16%
Special Education population for the
2024-2025 school year.

HCCS-PS will continue to
demonstrate strong recruitment
efforts for Students with Disabilities
for the 2025-2026 school year.

English Language Learners HCCS-PS is a Title 1 lottery
school with limited space in all
grades. During the application
and lottery period for school year
2024 – 2025, HCCS tracked their

HCCS-PS will continue to
demonstrate strong recruiment
efforts for English Language
Learners for the 2025-2026 school
year.
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wait list for prospective English
Language Learners. 26 families of
prospective English Language
Learners accepted the offered seats
and the school registered 26 new
prospective ELL students. All 26
students were screened, and 8 were
identified as ELLs. Most growth in
our ELL numbers come from our
incoming Kindergarten since there is
space available. HCCS-PS ended
the 2024-25 school
year with a total of 43 ELL students.
• HCCS-PS holds a lottery
preference for English Language
Learner students.
• HCCS-PS distributes
outreach materials such as their
school brochure, school
application and process,
calendar, contact and other
information about the school to
prospective families. The school
brochure specifically outlined the
ENL program and was translated
into Spanish.
• HCCS-PS has developed a
strong team of certified ELL
teachers and ELL coordinator who
receive extensive
and comprehensive professional
development and training to
meet the needs of their special
education and ELL population. ELL
teachers are observed weekly by
the ELL Department Lead. They
also meet weekly to plan for the
following week’s lesson in order to
create an environment for
successful learning.
• HCCS-PS continues to be
members of the NYC Charter
School Special Education
Collaborative. In addition, our
teachers receive extensive
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training in best practices and
programs such as Fundations,
Teachers College Reading and
Writing Project, Reading Rescue,
Learning A-Z, and
Heggerty Reading Systems.
• HCCS-PS continues to advertise
in popular and local newspapers
popular in the Park Slope and
Sunset Park area to specifically
target English Language
Learners. Advertisements are
translated into languages specific to
those regions.
• HCCS-PS utilizes targeted digital
marketing to reach multilingual
families in local zip codes. These
targeted displays appear on popular
websites within targeted zip codes.
They are also translated into
languages specific to those regions.
• HCCS-PS continues to reach out
to the community through their
three annual open houses in
December, February and March.
During the open house sessions,
HCCS-PS announces that they
welcome ELL students and
Students with Special Needs and
directs them to the ELL
Department Lead & Dean of Special
Education. Contact information for
the ELL Department Lead & Dean
of Special Education is also shared
with these families.
• HCCS-PS has multilingual staff
who assist with the
translations as needed regarding
but not limited to information
about the school, information on
how to apply to the school, and
contact information for the
school for stakeholders to reach
out to with further questions,
that are accessible to all parents.
• HCCS-PS teachers collaborate
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weekly during common planning
times to develop the curriculum
for all learners in the classroom.

Economically Disadvantaged

HCCS-PS is a School Wide Title 1
school with a 51% free and reduced
student population.
• HCCS-PS disseminates
outreach materials such as their
school brochure, school
application and process,
calendar, contact and
other information about the
school to prospective families.
• HCCS-PS continues to advertise
in popular and local newspapers
popular in the Park Slope and
Sunset Park area to specifically
target economically
disadvantaged students, English
Language Learners and Students
with Special Needs.
• HCCS-PS continues to reach out
to the community through their
annual virtual or in person open
house events.
• HCCS-PS has multi-lingual staff
who assist with the translations as
needed regarding but not
limited to information about the
school, information on how to
apply to the school, and contact
information for the school for
stakeholders to reach out to with
further questions, that are
accessible to all parents.
• HCCS-PS continues to have a
strong and effective partnership
with their community and their
families. The team effectively
communicates with all families
toensure student academic
achievement.

HCCS-PS will continue to
demonstrate strong recruiment
efforts for Economically
Disadvantaged students for the
2025-2026 school year.
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Good Faith Efforts To Meet Retention Targets

Describe Retention Efforts in 2024-

2025

Describe Retention Plans in 2025-

2026

Students with Disabilities

HCCS-PS has a special education
percentage of 16% for the 2024-
2025 school year. To continue to
achieve a greater percentage with
our subgroups we will continue to
reach out to pre-schools and day
cares throughout all neighborhoods
to
make parents aware of the option of
applying to our school, distributing
information about the school in
multiple languages, in addition to
holding in person open houses.
We will continue to provide
professional development
opportunities to our teachers to
enhance their knowledge of working
with Students with Disabilities.
Our lottery includes preferences for
Students with Disabilities and ELL
students.

HCCS-PS will continue to
demonstrate their best practice
efforts to retain Students with
Special Needs for school year 2025-
2026.

English Language Learners • HCCS-PS will continue to improve
our ELL student enrollment. We will
continue our strong outreach and
provide translators at all of our open
house events. We are grateful to
our existing families who help us
spread the word. We will continue to
make meaningful connections with
our ELL families and network with
their family and community members
as well.
• ELL students are supported by
reaching out to the parents and
providing them with any
materials and tools they need to
support their learning. The ELL
Department Lead and ELL teachers
help the students in small groups to
ensure they receive the support

HCCS-PS will continue to
demonstrate their best practice
efforts to retain English
Language Learners for school
year 2025-2026.
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they need. Parents are provided
with various resources that they can
use at home, including bilingual
texts, reading materials, Learning A-
Z subscriptions, supplemental
activities, and support materials.
Parents are invited to meet with ELL
teachers twice every year at Parent-
Teacher Conferences, as well as
when needed. Connecting with
families and providing at home
support increases families’
satisfaction and retention.
• The guidance counselor also
supports the students with their
social emotional health during
scheduled sessions with them.
• HCCS-PS continues to have a
diverse student population and
strong school spirit and culture.
Students and Staff feel welcomed
and are connected. HCCS-PS
promotes strong family
engagement and communication.
By recruiting a multilingual and
diverse staff, students and families
feel comfortable and connected with
the school community.
• In addition, HCCS-PS provides
year round professional
development earmarked toward
social emotional learning, equity,
diversity and inclusion. Every Book
of the Month is focused on diversity
and equity and opens the floor to
such conversations. The ELL
Department Lead and ELL teachers
also make themselves available to
provide support to the classroom
and content teachers, including
creating culturally relevant materials
for the classroom, bringing in diverse
texts with diverse characters,
scaffolding materials to meet the
needs of the ELL students, and
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providing translations for parent
conversations.

Economically Disadvantaged

Students who are economically
disadvantaged are supported by
reaching out to the parents and
providing them with any
materials and tools they need to
support their learning. Teaching
assistants help the students with
their homework assignments and
work with them often during
independent work time. They are
also included in small groups more
often than other students to ensure
they receive the support they need.
The guidance counselor also plays
a major role in reaching out to the
families to address attendance
issues and other issues that may
contribute to the lack of completing
assignments. The guidance
counselor also supports the
students with their social emotional
health during
scheduled sessions with them.
HCCS-PS continues to have a
diverse student population and
strong school spirit and culture.
Students and Staff feel welcomed
and are connected. HCCS-PS
promotes strong family engagement
and communication. In addition,
HCCS-PS provides year round
professional development
earmarked toward social
emotional learning, equity,
diversity and inclusion.

HCCS-PS will continue to
demonstrate their best practice
efforts to retain Economically
Disadvantaged students for school
year 2025-2026.

Entry 7 – Employee Fingerprint Requirements Attestation
Completed - Jul 21 2025

Instructions 

Required of ALL Charter Schools

Review and complete the Employee Fingerprint Requirements Attestation.
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Entry 7 – Employee Fingerprint Requirements Attestation
A. TEACH System – Employee Clearance

Required of ALL Charter Schools

Charter schools MUST ensure that all prospective employees[1] receive clearance through the NYSED Office of

School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA) prior to employment. This includes paraprofessionals and

other school personnel who are provided or assigned by the district of location, or related/contracted service

providers. After an employee has been cleared, schools are required to maintain proof of such clearance in the file

of each employee. 

Please note that all schools should maintain an electronic or hard copy of the clearance certification pulled from

TEACH and dated PRIOR to the employee's start date. Clearance certifications pulled from TEACH at a later date will

show that the staff member was cleared as of that date and may result in a finding of clearance violations against the

school.

[1] Employees who must be cleared include, but are not limited to, teachers, administrative staff, janitors, security

personnel and cafeteria workers, and other staff who are present when children are in the school building. This

includes paraprofessionals and other school personnel that are provided or assigned by the district of

location, as well as related/contracted service providers. See NYSED memorandum dated October 1, 2019 at

NYSED CSO Employee Clearance and Fingerprint Memo or visit the NYSED website at Who Must Be Fingerprinted

Charts for more information regarding who must be fingerprinted. Also see, 8 NYCRR §87.2.

https://www.nysed.gov/educator-integrity/about-ospra
http://www.nysed.gov/common/nysed/files/programs/charter-schools/employeefingerprintoct19.pdf
https://www.nysed.gov/educator-integrity/who-must-be-fingerprinted-charts
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B. Emergency Conditional Clearances

Charter schools are strongly discouraged from using the emergency conditional clearance provisions for prospective

employees. This is because the school must request clearance through NYSED TEACH, and the school’s emergency

conditional clearance of the employee terminates automatically once the school receives notification from NYSED

regarding the clearance request. Status notification is provided for all prospective employees through the NYSED

TEACH portal within 48 hours after the clearance request is submitted. Therefore, at most, a school’s emergency

conditional clearance will be valid for only 48 hours after approval by the board.

Schools are not permitted to renew or in any way re-establish a prospective employee’s emergency conditional

clearance after status notification is sent by NYSED through the TEACH portal.

Schools are asked to attest that they have reviewed and understand these requirements. More information can be

found in the memo at NYSED CSO Employee Clearance and Fingerprint Memo.

Attestation

Responses Selected:

I hereby attest that the school has reviewed, understands, and will comply with these requirements.

Entry 8 – Organization Chart
Completed - Jul 21 2025

Instructions

Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

Upload the school's current approved 2024-2025 Organization Chart. The organization chart should be a graphic
representation (a list will not be accepted) and should include position titles and reporting (hierarchical) relationships.
 Employee names should not appear on the chart.

HCCS_Org_Chart_Revised_June_2023

Filename: HCCS_Org_Chart_Revised_June_2023_Iyb0SXu.pdf Size: 369.0 kB

Entry 9 – School Calendar
Completed - Jul 23 2025

Instructions 

Required of ALL Charter Schools

Charter schools must upload a final 2025-2026 calendar into the portal no later than 11:59 PM on August 1, 2025. 

School calendars must meet the minimum instructional requirements as required of other public schools “… unless
the school’s charter requires more instructional time than is required under the regulations.”

http://www.nysed.gov/common/nysed/files/programs/charter-schools/employeefingerprintoct19.pdf
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/294820704/32911516/HCCS_Org_Chart_Revised_June_2023_Iyb0SXu.pdf
https://stateaid.nysed.gov/attendance/htm_docs/final_adopted_regulations.htm
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Board of Regents-authorized charter schools are also required to submit school calendars that clearly indicate the
start and end date of the instructional year AND the number of instructional hours and/or instructional days for
each month. Schools must use a calendar format and ensure there is a monthly tally of instructional days.

Charter schools serving elementary and secondary levels may submit one combined calendar showing instructional
hours and days for all building levels OR separate calendars uploaded as one PDF. Note that school calendars will
also provide evidence of alignment for schools with extended days/years referenced in their mission statements or
key design elements. 

See below for an example of a calendar showing the requested information.

Sample Calendar:

Annual Report School Calendar 25-26

Filename: Annual_Report_School_Calendar_25-26_.pdf Size: 166.1 kB

Entry 10 – Faculty/Staff Roster Template
Completed - Jul 24 2025

INSTRUCTIONS

Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY

Please click on the MS Excel Faculty/Staff Roster Template and provide the following information for all instructional
and non-instructional employees, which should include all faculty and staff employed by the school at any point
during the 2024-2025 school year.

Use of the 2024-2025 Annual Report Faculty/Staff Roster Template is required. With the exception of the
optional Notes section, completion of each of the data elements is required. When provided, use of the drop-
down list options is also required.  Failure to adhere to the guidelines and validations in the Faculty/Staff Roster
Template will result in the need for resubmission of a fully corrected roster.

Reminders: (1) Verify that the correct TEACH ID is entered in the roster. Incorrect data entry may result in findings of
non-compliance for the school in the areas of teacher certification and clearance. (2) Use the Notes section to add
any additional information deemed necessary, such as a name change that may impact verification of certification. (3)
Ensure staff classifications (i.e., teacher / non-teacher) are accurately identified.

Here is the complete list of data elements in the roster template and an explanation of what information is required to
correctly complete this task.

Roster Data Elements Explanations
Authorizer
NOTE: MUST BE DONE FIRST

Select your school’s authorizer from the drop-down list
first, before completing the roster.

School Name and Institution ID Select your school’s name from the drop-down list.
Faculty/Staff First Name Enter the first name of the Faculty/Staff person.
Faculty/Staff Last Name Enter the last name of the Faculty/Staff person.

TEACH ID Enter the 7-digit TEACH ID for the Faculty/Staff person;
verify the TEACH ID is correctly entered.

Role at the School / Network Select the best choice of role of the Faculty/Staff person
from the drop-down list.

Total Years Experience in this Role Enter the number of years of experience the
Faculty/Staff person has in the role selected.

CPR/AED Certification Status Select the appropriate choice from the drop-down list.

Hire Date at the School / Network Enter the date that the Faculty/Staff person was hired at
the school/network.

Start Date at the School / Network Enter the date that the Faculty/Staff person actually
began employment at this school/network.

Date Employee Separated from Service (if applicable) Enter the date that the Faculty/Staff person separated
from service at the school/network.

Certification Status / Out-of-Certification Justification Select the appropriate choice from the drop-down list.

https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/294820705/32963129/Annual_Report_School_Calendar_25-26_.pdf
http://www.nysed.gov/charter-schools/annual-reports
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FOR TEACHERS ONLY: Choose Subject Taught Select the appropriate choice from the drop-down list.
FOR TEACHERS ONLY: Specify Subject or Grade Band,
if NOT Math, Science, Career Technical Education,
Technology, or Computer Science

Select the appropriate choice from the drop-down list.

Notes Optional

faculty-staff-roster-template-2025 Park Slope

Filename: faculty-staff-roster-template-202_8xsSa5Z.xlsx Size: 28.4 kB

Entry 11 – Progress Toward Goals (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-
Authorized Charter Schools ONLY
Completed - Nov 3 2025

Instructions 
Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY  

Board of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-authorized schools must report all Progress Toward Charter Goals as
per their currently approved charters no later than 11:59 PM on November 3, 2025.

Schools must complete the "Goals" tables as provided in the tables below OR upload the most current action plan
that includes progress made toward the attainment of goals during the 2024-2025 school year. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task for Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-authorized charter schools. It is
marked optional for administrative purposes only.

Entry 11 – Progress Toward Goals
PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS 

Board of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-authorized schools may complete the "Goals" tables as provided

in the portal OR upload the school's most current action plan that includes progress made toward the

attainment of academic, organization, and financial goals during the 2024-2025 school year.

Please select the method by which you will provide your school's information:

Responses Selected:

Complete Provided Goals Tables

     

https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/294820706/32967046/faculty-staff-roster-template-202_8xsSa5Z.xlsx
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PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

Complete the tables provided. List each goal and measure as contained in the school’s currently approved charter

and indicate whether the school has met or not met the goal. Please provide information for all  goals no later than

November 3, 2025.

     

1. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

The following tables reflect formatting in the online portal required for Board of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-

authorized charter schools only. These charter schools should report all Progress Toward Charter Goals as per their

currently approved charters no later than November 3, 2025. 
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2024-2025 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals

Academic Student

Performance Goal

Measure Used to

Evaluate Progress

Toward Attainment of

Goal

Goal - Met, Not Met

or Unable to Assess

If not met, describe

efforts the school will

take to meet goal. If

unable to assess

goal, type N/A for

Not Applicable

Academic Goal 1 Goal 1 – Establish
and maintain high
academic attainment
and continuous
improvement for all
students.
Absolute
Performance
a.Throughout the
course of the charter
term, HCCS-SI will
show progress
towards achieving
75% of its 3rd-8th
graders, who have
been enrolled at the
school on BEDS day
for at least two
consecutive years
○ performing at or
above Level 3 on
the NYS ELA exam.
○ performing at or
above Level 3 on
the NYS Math exam.
b. Throughout the
course of the charter
term, HCCS-SI will
show progress
towards achieving
75% of its 5th & 8th
thgraders who have
been enrolled at the
school on BEDS day
for at least two

NYS ELA and MATH
EXAM

Fox in the Box
Literacy Assessment

NWEA
Assessment
in Math and ELA

Fountas and
Pinnell Reading
Assessment

Kindergarten
Greek Common
Assessment in
Letter Recognition,
Writing and Verbal
Skills

First Grade
Greek Common
Assessment in
Letter Recognition,
Writing and Verbal
Skills

Met
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consecutive years,
performing at or
above Level 3 on
the NYS Science
exam.
c. Each year, 75% of
the Grade 8
students who are
recommended by
the Mathematics
Department and
have taken
Integrated Algebra I
will pass the NYS
Algebra with an
average passing
score of at least
70%.
d. Each year, 75% of
the Grade 8
students who are
recommended by
the Science
Department and
have taken the NYS
Living Environment
regent exam will
pass the regent with
an average passing
score of at least
70%.
Value - Added
Performance/Progre
ss
e. Throughout the
charter term, each
grade-level cohort of
HCCS-SI &PS
students will reduce
by one-quarter, the
gap between the
percent at or above
Level 3 on the
previous year’s NYS
ELA exam and 75%
at or above Level 3
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on:
● the current year’s
NYS ELA exam. If a
grade-level cohort
exceeds 75% at or
above Level 3 in the
previous year, the
cohort will
demonstrate growth
(above 75 percent)
in the current year.
● the previous year’s
NYS Math exam and
75% at or above
Level 3 on the
current year’s NYS
Math exam. If a
grade-level cohort
exceeds 75% at or
above Level 3 in the
previous year, the
cohort will
demonstrate growth
(above 75 percent)
in the current year.
Comparative
Performance
f. Each year, the
percent of HCCS-SI
students performing
at or above Level 3
on the NYS ELA
exam and NYS Math
exam in each tested
grade will, in the
majority of grades,
exceed the average
performance of
students tested in
the same grades of
CSD 331 and CSD
15.
School- Specific/
Internal Educational
Assessment
Indicators
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Fox in a Box Goals
g. Each year, on the
Spring administration
of the Fox in the Box
early literacy
assessments
● 75% of
kindergarten
students who were
enrolled at the
School on BEDS
day will perform at or
above a Level 1 on
the rhyme
recognition, rhyme
generation, syllable
clapping, initial
consonants, and at
or above a Level 2
on the final
consonants,
blending,
segmenting, ABC
recognition, writing,
spelling, decoding,
sight words, and
emergent reading
strands.
● 75% of the 1st
grade students who
were enrolled on
BEDS day for two
consecutive years
will perform at or
above a Level 4 on
the spelling,
decoding,
vocabulary, sight
words, reading
accuracy.
● 75% of the 2nd
grade students who
have been enrolled
at the School on
BEDS day for at
least two
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consecutive years
will perform at or
above Level 6 on
the spelling,
decoding,
vocabulary, sight
words, reading
accuracy, and
reading
comprehension
strands.
NWEA Goals
h. Each year, all
students in Grades 2
through 8 who were
enrolled in the
School for at least
two consecutive
BEDS dates will
average at least five
percentile points of
growth on NWEA
MAP Reading and
Math assessments
until average
percentile score
reaches 85.
i. Each year, 75% of
all students in
Grades 2 through 85
who were enrolled in
the School for at
least two
consecutive BEDS
dates, including
students with
disabilities, ELLs,
and economically
disadvantaged
students, will
achieve at least one
year of growth on
NWEA MAP.
Fountas & Pinnell
j. Each year, 75% of
all students in
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Grades 1 through 8
who were enrolled in
the School for at
least two
consecutive BEDS
dates will
demonstrate
progress towards
reaching grade level
proficiency grow a
minimum of 2 levels
as measured by the
F&P assessment
regardless of
incoming F&P level.

Greek Proficiency
Goals
k. By the end of the
school year, 75% of
kindergarteners who
were enrolled on
BEDS day will be
able to:
● recognize all
Greek Letters in their
print form, as
measured by a
Greek Letter
Recognition and
Writing Common
Assessment
● communicate
verbally as
measured by the
HCCS Greek Verbal
Common
Assessment
l. By the end of the
school year, 75% of
first graders who
were enrolled on
BEDS day for at
least two
consecutive years
will be able to:
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● write all the Greek
alphabet in print, as
measured by a
Greek Letter
Recognition And
Writing Common
Assessment
● perform proficiently
in listening, as
measured by the
Greek Listening
Common
Assessment
● perform proficiently
in reading, as
measured by the
Greek Reading
Common
Assessment
● communicate
verbally as
measured by the
Greek Verbal
Common
Assessment
m. By the end the
school year, 75% of
students in grades 2
- 7 who were
enrolled on BEDS
day for at least two
consecutive years
will perform
proficiently in oral,
reading, listening,
and writing skills, as
measured by the
Greek Verbal,
Reading, Listening,
and Writing Common
Assessments.
n. Each year, 75% of
HCCS Grade 8
students who have
been recommended
by the Greek
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department to sit for
the NYSED LOTE
Checkpoint B-
Comprehensive
Exam in Modern
Greek will pass the
LOTE with an
average passing
score of at least
70%.

Academic Goal 2

Academic Goal 3

Academic Goal 4

Academic Goal 5
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Academic Goal 6

Academic Goal 7

Academic Goal 8

Academic Goal 9

Academic Goal 10

2. Do have more academic goals to add?

No

2. ORGANIZATION GOALS
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2024-2025 Progress Toward Attainment of Organization Goals

Organizational Goal Measure Used to

Evaluate Progress

Goal - Met, Not Met,

or Unable to Assess

If not met, describe

efforts the school will

take to meet goal. If

unable to assess

goal, type N/A for

Not Applicable

Org Goal 1 Establish and
maintain an
engaging, inclusive
and supportive
learning environment
for all students.
a. Recruitment –
Each year, HCCS-SI
& PS will meet or
exceed enrollment
and retention targets
as prescribed by the
Board of Regents,
through the State
Education
Department, of
students with
disabilities, English
language learners,
and students who
are eligible for the
free- and reduced-
price lunch program.
b. Attendance - At
the end of each
school year, HCCS-
SI & PS will have an
average daily
student attendance
rate of at least 95%.
c. Retention - Each
year, 95% of all
students enrolled at
HCCS-SI & PS
during the last day

ATS

Vendor Portal

NYCDOE Survey

Met
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of the school year
will return the
following September,
not including those
who move out of
area.
d. Parent
Satisfaction - Each
year, parents will
express satisfaction
with HCCS-SI & PS’s
program, based on
the NYCDOE
Learning
Environment Survey
in which the school
will receive
satisfactory scores in
each of the four
survey domains:
Academic
Expectations,
Communication,
Engagement, and
Safety and Respect.
The school will only
have met this goal if
at least 50% of the
parents participate in
the survey.
e. Staff Satisfaction
and Retention -
Each year, teachers
will express
satisfaction with
HCCS’ leadership
and professional
development
opportunities, based
on the NYCDOE
Learning
Environment Survey
in which the school
will achieve
satisfactory scores in
each of the four
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survey domains:
Academic
Expectations,
Communication,
Engagement, and
Safety and Respect.
The school will only
have met this goal if
at least 50% of the
teachers participate
in the survey.

Org Goal 2

Org Goal 3

Org Goal 4

Org Goal 5

Org Goal 6

Org Goal 7

Org Goal 8

Org Goal 9

Org Goal 10

Org Goal 11

Org Goal 12

Org Goal 13

Org Goal 14

Org Goal 15

Org Goal 16

Org Goal 17

Org Goal 18

Org Goal 19

Org Goal 20
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5. Do have more organizational goals to add?

No

3. FINANCIAL GOALS
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2024-2025 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals

Financial Goals Measure Used to

Evaluate Progress

Goal - Met, Not Met,

or Partially Met

If not met, describe

efforts the school will

take to meet goal.

Financial Goal 1

Establish and
maintain the school
as a well-run
organization capable
of sustaining long-
term success.
a. Each year, HCCS
will comply with all
applicable laws,
rules, regulations,
and contract terms
including, but not
limited to, the New
York Charter Schools
Act, the New York
Freedom of
Information Law, the
New York Open
Meetings Law, the
federal Individuals
with Disabilities
Education Act, and
federal Family
Educational Rights
and Privacy Act.
b. Each year, HCCS
will undergo an
independent
financial audit that
will result in an
unqualified opinion
and no major
findings.
c. Each year, HCCS
will operate on a
balanced budget
and maintain a
stable cash flow.

a. Approved Board
of Regents Charter;
Applicable law, rules
and regulations; NY
Charter Schools Act;
NY Freedom
Information Law; NY
Open Meetings Law;
Federal Individuals
with Disabilities
Education Act;
Family Educational
Rights and Privacy
Act.

b. Independent
audit issued by PKF
O'Connor Davies,
LLP.

c. Monthly internal
financial statements
and annual external
audit by PKF
O'Connor Davies.

Met
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Financial Goal 2

Financial Goal 3

Financial Goal 4

Financial Goal 5

7. Do have more financial goals to add?

No

Thank you.

Entry 12 – Audited Financial Statements
Completed - Oct 31 2025

Required of ALL Charter Schools

ALL charter schools must upload the financial statements and related documents in PDF format into the portal no
later than 11:59 PM on November 3, 2025. The statements, the independent auditor’s report, any advisory and/or
management letter, and the internal controls report must be combined into a PDF file with security features such as
password protection removed.

ALL SUNY-authorized charter schools must also enter the financial statements and upload related documents in
PDF format into the SUNY Compass system no later than 11:59 PM on November 3, 2025. SUNY-authorized
charter schools are asked to ensure that security features such as password protection are turned off.

PLEASE NOTE: This task appears as optional until August 1, 2025. Thereafter, it will be identified as a required task
due on November 3, 2025. 

Hellenic Classical Charter School FST with Mgmt Ltr

Filename: c7bceef2040341e1961842eca0798b72.pdf Size: 429.0 kB

Entry 12a – Audited Financial Report Template (BOR)
Completed - Oct 31 2025

Regents-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY

Regents-authorized schools must download the Excel spreadsheet entitled “Audited Financial Report Template” from
the portal or the Annual Reports webpage and complete it using the audited financial statements. Upload the
completed file no later than 11:59 PM on November 3, 2025. 

Do not add rows or columns to the template in order to match the format of the financial statements. Use only the
existing fields and combine any additional entries into the “other” fields throughout the template. For education
corporations operating more than one school, complete one template at the education corporation level and submit
the same template for each of the schools operated by the education corporation. 

PLEASE NOTE: This task appears as optional until August 1, 2025. Thereafter, it will be identified as a required task
due on November 3, 2025. 

HCCS-PS & SI - NYSED_CS Audited Financial Report FY2025 NYSED

https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/294820709/33578092/c7bceef2040341e1961842eca0798b72.pdf
http://www.nysed.gov/charter-schools/annual-reports
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/294820710/33580950/5870d886e5a742c887a7d0b4abf392eb.xlsx
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Filename: 5870d886e5a742c887a7d0b4abf392eb.xlsx Size: 80.7 kB

Entry 12b – Additional Financial Documents
Completed - Oct 31 2025

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-authorized schools must upload financial documents and submit no later
than 11:59 PM on November 3, 2025. The items listed below should be uploaded with an explanation added if an
item is not applicable or not available (e.g., a “Federal Single Audit was not required because the school did not
expend federal funds of more than the $750,000 Threshold.”)

1. Advisory and/or Management Letter
2. Federal Single Audit
3. Agreed-Upon Procedure Report
4. Evidence of Required Escrow Account for Each School
5. Corrective Action Plan for Audit Findings and Management Letter Recommendations

PLEASE NOTE: This task appears as an optional task until August 1, 2025. After this date, the task will be identified
as a required task due on November 3, 2025.

ESCROW PS June 2025

Filename: 315c9f4c77c74a60a4f09ed77cee3be0.pdf Size: 130.4 kB

No Single Audit Note

Filename: 708602abc48e4996819fcb734a5de4bd.pdf Size: 128.1 kB

Entry 12c – Financial Contact Information
Completed - Oct 31 2025

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-authorized schools should enter financial contact information directly into the
form within the portal no later than 11:59 PM on November 3, 2025.

PLEASE NOTE: This task appears as an optional task until August 1, 2025. After this date, the task will be identified
as a required task due on November 3, 2025.

Form for "Financial Contact Information"

     

1. School Based Fiscal Contact Information

School Based Fiscal

Contact Name

School Based Fiscal

Contact Email

School Based Fiscal

Contact Phone

Joy Petrakos
Joy.Petrakos@hccs-
nys.org

718-499-0957

https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/294820711/33581312/315c9f4c77c74a60a4f09ed77cee3be0.pdf
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/294820711/33581316/708602abc48e4996819fcb734a5de4bd.pdf
mailto:Joy.Petrakos@hccs-nys.org
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2. Audit Firm Contact Information

School Audit Contact

Name

School Audit Contact

Email

School Audit Contact

Phone

Years Working With

This Audit Firm

Gus Saliba gsaliba@pkfod.com 914-381-8900 7

3. If applicable, please provide contact information for the school's outsourced financial services firm.

Firm Name Contact

Person

Mailing

Address

Email Phone Years With

Firm

CSBM
Kamilah
O'Brien

KObrien@csb
m.com

KObrien@csb
m.com

888-710-2726 3

Entry 13 – Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Budget
Completed - Oct 29 2025

SUNY-authorized charter schools are required to use Compass to complete and submit the Annual Budget and the
Budget Narrative Questionnaire no later than 11:59 PM on November 3, 2025.

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-authorized charter schools are required to download the budget template
from the portal or the Annual Reports webpage and complete it. Upload the completed template no later than 11:59
PM on November 3, 2025. The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless
the item is self-explanatory. 

PLEASE NOTE: This task appears as optional until August 1, 2025. Thereafter, it will be identified as a required task
due on November 3, 2025. 

HCCPS 2025-2026-Annual Budget

Filename: b83b301d6d754d3fbec0f17b6fe8eaa8.xlsx Size: 47.8 kB

Optional Additional Documents to Upload (BOR)
Incomplete

mailto:gsaliba@pkfod.com
mailto:KObrien@csbm.com
mailto:KObrien@csbm.com
https://www.nysed.gov/charter-schools/annual-reports
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/294820713/33545319/b83b301d6d754d3fbec0f17b6fe8eaa8.xlsx
































   

      
 

 

    

   
  

   

  

 
   

 

  

            
  

 

      
  

 

    

 

  
   

  
 

 

 
 

 
  

  

________________________________________________________________   

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current 
or Former 7UXVWHH 

Trustee Name: 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation: 

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees (“Board”) 
(e.g., chair, Yice�chair, treasurer, secretary, parent representative, etc�). 

2. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the sFKooO 
DQG�oU eGXFDWLoQ FoUSoUDWLoQ" 

Yes No 
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and the person
s 
SosLWLoQ� MoE GesFULSWLoQ� DQG oWKeU UesSoQsLELOLWLes ZLWK WKe sFKooO. 

�. Are you related by blood, or marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship to any 
student currently enrolled in a school operated by the education corporation? 

Yes No 
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and LI the 
sWXGeQW could benefit from your participation. 
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4. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise 
benefit from your participation as a board member of the eGXFDWLoQ FoUSoUDWLoQ? 

Yes No 
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and LI this person could 
benefit from your participation. 

5. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school, 
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive 
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which 
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; or 
do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling interest 
in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans to contract 
or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, and/or a CMO, 
whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, the lease of real 
or personal property to the said entities? 

Yes No 

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 
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�. ,dentify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that 
\oX� DQ\ oI \oXU LPPeGLDWe IDPLO\ PePEeUs� DQG�oU DQ\ SeUsoQs ZKo \oX UesLGe 
ZLWK KDYe KeOG oU eQJDJeG LQ ZLWK WKe FKDUWeU sFKooO�s� oSeUDWeG E\ WKe 
eGXFDWLoQ FoUSoUDWLoQ GXULQJ WKe WLPe \oX KDYe seUYeG oQ WKe %oDUG� DQG LQ WKe 
sL[ PoQWKs SULoU Wo sXFK seUYLFe� ,I WKeUe KDs EeeQ Qo sXFK LQWeUesW oU 
WUDQsDFWLoQ� FKeFN None�

 None 

Date(s) Nature of 
financial 
interest /

transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 
(e.g., did not vote, did 

not participate in 
discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest 
or engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

you 
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�. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, 
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real 
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and 
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or 
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) \oX UesLGe ZLWK had a 
financial interest or other relationship. ,I you are a member, director, oIIicer, or 
employee oI an organi]ation Iormally partnered Zith and/or doing business 
Zith the school�s� through a management or serYices agreement, please 
identiIy only the name oI the organi]ation, your position in the organi]ation, 
and the relationship betZeen such organi]ation and the school�s�� If there was 
no financial interest, check None. 

None 

Organization 
conducting 

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee 
and/or immediate 
family member of 

household holding an 
interest in the 
organization 

conducting business
with the school(s) 

and the nature of the 
interest 

Steps 
taken to 

avoid 
conflict of 

interest 
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________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________  

�

This document is considered a public record and, as such, may be made available 
to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. The 
personal contact information provided below will be redacted. 

Business Telephone: 

Business Address: 

E-mail Address: 

Home Telephone: 

Home Address: 

Signature Date 

Acceptable signature Iormats include� 
• 'igitally certiIied 3') signature 
• 3rint Iorm, manually sign, scan to 3') 

last revised 04/2022 
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Grazia Svokos

Grazia Svokos_1

Grazia Svokos_2
633

Grazia Svokos_3

Grazia Svokos_4
7/14/2025



   

      
 

 

    

   
  

   

  

 
   

 

  

            
  

 

      
  

 

    

 

  
   

  
 

 

 
 

 
  

  

________________________________________________________________   

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current 
or Former Trustee 

Trustee Name: 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation: 

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees (“Board”) 
(e.g., chair, vice-chair, treasurer, secretary, parent representative, etc.). 

2. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school 
and/or education corporation? 

Yes No 
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and the person's 
position, job description, and other responsibilities with the school. 

3. Are you related by blood, or marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship to any 
student currently enrolled in a school operated by the education corporation? 

Yes No 
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if the 
student could benefit from your participation. 
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4. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise 
benefit from your participation as a board member of the education corporation? 

Yes No 
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if this person could 
benefit from your participation. 

5. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school, 
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive 
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which 
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; or 
do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling interest 
in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans to contract 
or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, and/or a CMO, 
whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, the lease of real 
or personal property to the said entities? 

Yes No 

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 
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6. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that 
you, any of your immediate family members, and/or any persons who you reside 
with have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) operated by the 
education corporation during the time you have served on the Board, and in the 
six months prior to such service. If there has been no such interest or 
transaction, check None.

 None 

Date(s) Nature of 
financial 
interest /

transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 
(e.g., did not vote, did 

not participate in 
discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest 
or engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

you 
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7. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, 
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real 
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and 
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or 
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) you reside with had a 
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer, or 
employee of an organization formally partnered with and/or doing business 
with the school(s) through a management or services agreement, please 
identify only the name of the organization, your position in the organization, 
and the relationship between such organization and the school(s). If there was 
no financial interest, check None. 

None 

Organization 
conducting 

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee 
and/or immediate 
family member of 

household holding an 
interest in the 
organization 

conducting business
with the school(s) 

and the nature of the 
interest 

Steps 
taken to 

avoid 
conflict of 

interest 
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________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________  

-

This document is considered a public record and, as such, may be made available 
to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. The 
personal contact information provided below will be redacted. 

Business Telephone: 

Business Address: 

E-mail Address: 

Home Telephone: 

Home Address: 

Signature Date 

Acceptable signature formats include: 
• Digitally certified PDF signature 
• Print form, manually sign, scan to PDF 

last revised 04/2022 
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________________________________________________________________   

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current 
or Former Trustee 

Trustee Name: 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation: 

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees (“Board”) 
(e.g., chair, vice-chair, treasurer, secretary, parent representative, etc.). 

2. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school 
and/or education corporation? 

Yes No 
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and the person's 
position, job description, and other responsibilities with the school. 

3. Are you related by blood, or marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship to any 
student currently enrolled in a school operated by the education corporation? 

Yes No 
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if the 
student could benefit from your participation. 
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Hellenic Classical Charter Schools

Member 

✔

N/A

N/A

✔
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4. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise 
benefit from your participation as a board member of the education corporation? 

Yes No 
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if this person could 
benefit from your participation. 

5. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school, 
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive 
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which 
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; or 
do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling interest 
in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans to contract 
or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, and/or a CMO, 
whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, the lease of real 
or personal property to the said entities? 

Yes No 

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 
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6. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that 
you, any of your immediate family members, and/or any persons who you reside 
with have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) operated by the 
education corporation during the time you have served on the Board, and in the 
six months prior to such service. If there has been no such interest or 
transaction, check None.

 None 

Date(s) Nature of 
financial 
interest /

transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 
(e.g., did not vote, did 

not participate in 
discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest 
or engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

you 
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7. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, 
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real 
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and 
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or 
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) you reside with had a 
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer, or 
employee of an organization formally partnered with and/or doing business 
with the school(s) through a management or services agreement, please 
identify only the name of the organization, your position in the organization, 
and the relationship between such organization and the school(s). If there was 
no financial interest, check None. 

None 

Organization 
conducting 

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee 
and/or immediate 
family member of 

household holding an 
interest in the 
organization 

conducting business
with the school(s) 

and the nature of the 
interest 

Steps 
taken to 

avoid 
conflict of 

interest 
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________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________  

-

This document is considered a public record and, as such, may be made available 
to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. The 
personal contact information provided below will be redacted. 

Business Telephone: 

Business Address: 

E-mail Address: 

Home Telephone: 

Home Address: 

Signature Date 

Acceptable signature formats include: 
• Digitally certified PDF signature 
• Print form, manually sign, scan to PDF 

last revised 04/2022 
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________________________________________________________________   

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current 
or Former 7UXVWHH 

Trustee Name: 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation: 

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees (“Board”) 
(e.g., chair, Yice�chair, treasurer, secretary, parent representative, etc�). 

2. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the sFKooO 
DQG�oU eGXFDWLoQ FoUSoUDWLoQ" 

Yes No 
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and the person
s 
SosLWLoQ� MoE GesFULSWLoQ� DQG oWKeU UesSoQsLELOLWLes ZLWK WKe sFKooO. 

�. Are you related by blood, or marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship to any 
student currently enrolled in a school operated by the education corporation? 

Yes No 
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and LI the 
sWXGeQW could benefit from your participation. 
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4. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise 
benefit from your participation as a board member of the eGXFDWLoQ FoUSoUDWLoQ? 

Yes No 
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and LI this person could 
benefit from your participation. 

5. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school, 
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive 
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which 
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; or 
do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling interest 
in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans to contract 
or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, and/or a CMO, 
whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, the lease of real 
or personal property to the said entities? 

Yes No 

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 
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�

�. ,dentify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that 
\oX� DQ\ oI \oXU LPPeGLDWe IDPLO\ PePEeUs� DQG�oU DQ\ SeUsoQs ZKo \oX UesLGe 
ZLWK KDYe KeOG oU eQJDJeG LQ ZLWK WKe FKDUWeU sFKooO�s� oSeUDWeG E\ WKe 
eGXFDWLoQ FoUSoUDWLoQ GXULQJ WKe WLPe \oX KDYe seUYeG oQ WKe %oDUG� DQG LQ WKe 
sL[ PoQWKs SULoU Wo sXFK seUYLFe� ,I WKeUe KDs EeeQ Qo sXFK LQWeUesW oU 
WUDQsDFWLoQ� FKeFN None�

 None 

Date(s) Nature of 
financial 
interest /

transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 
(e.g., did not vote, did 

not participate in 
discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest 
or engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

you 
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�

�. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, 
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real 
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and 
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or 
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) \oX UesLGe ZLWK had a 
financial interest or other relationship. ,I you are a member, director, oIIicer, or 
employee oI an organi]ation Iormally partnered Zith and/or doing business 
Zith the school�s� through a management or serYices agreement, please 
identiIy only the name oI the organi]ation, your position in the organi]ation, 
and the relationship betZeen such organi]ation and the school�s�� If there was 
no financial interest, check None. 

None 

Organization 
conducting 

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee 
and/or immediate 
family member of 

household holding an 
interest in the 
organization 

conducting business
with the school(s) 

and the nature of the 
interest 

Steps 
taken to 

avoid 
conflict of 

interest 
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________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________  

�

This document is considered a public record and, as such, may be made available 
to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. The 
personal contact information provided below will be redacted. 

Business Telephone: 

Business Address: 

E-mail Address: 

Home Telephone: 

Home Address: 

Signature Date 

Acceptable signature Iormats include� 
• 'igitally certiIied 3') signature 
• 3rint Iorm, manually sign, scan to 3') 

last revised 04/2022 
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MINUTES OF

HELLENIC CLASSICAL CHARTER SCHOOLS

SCHOOL BOARD MEETING

HELD ON JULY 23, 2024 AT 9:30 a.m.

Members and Staff – via Zoom Conferencing

PRESENT

Charles Capetanakis Chairman

Harvey Newman Secretary
Nikolaos Leonardos Treasurer

Effie Lekas Member

Grazia Svokos Member

Dr. Liana Theodoratou Member

Bianca Rajpersaud Member

Nik Mathews Member

Christina Tettonis Superintendent

Joy Petrakos
Natasha Caban

Dena Capetanakis

ABSENT

Cathy Kakleas

Spiros Moustakas

Dean Angelakos
Stacy Kokkoros

Chief of Operations

Principal HCCS-PS

Director of Community & Engagement

Principal HCCS-SI
Member

Member

Operations Manager

Mr. Capetanakis chaired the meeting. Joy Petrakos acted as recorder. There were eight

Board members present at the Board meeting as such having quorum.

The first item on the agenda is the approval of the minutes of the meeting on June 28,

2024. On a motion made by Mr. Newman and seconded by Mr. Leonardos, the minutes were

unanimously approved.

Mrs. Tettonis stated that we are presently servicing children in our summer school
programs. She thanked Mrs. Kakleas, Mrs. Caban, Mrs. Petrakos, Mrs. Capetanakis and all the
teachers/staff that have been working hard to coordinate a comprehensive summer school

program. There is an enrichment program right after summer school. There are also incoming
eighth graders that have the opportunity to prepare for Algebra with Mr. Wong. We are also

planning for next school year. The NYSED instructional reports for ELA and Math have been

received and are being reviewed. There will be additional details in my next report concerning
testing scores. The team has been interviewing for vacant teacher positions. This is an

incredible amount of work. Thank you to Mrs. Capetanakis for the work that she is doing with

the executive Boards on the P.T.A.'s of both schools putting together the calendars and
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working with both principals on their events for the new school year. There are big changes

coming and Mrs. Petrakos will be talking about all the upcoming fundraising events. We are

really excited. Mrs. Tettonis wishes everyone a wonderful summer.

Mr. Newman asked what is the attrition that we know of up to this point? Do we have a sense

of how many students will be returning? Mrs. Tettonis answered that we are fully enrolled in

both schools. Of course, there are usuallyasmall number of students who always move out of

state or move to schools closer to home during the summer. This is to be expected. As of right

now we are fully enrolled and we have a waitlist in both schools. Mrs. Petrakos states that

there are enrollment numbers in her report.

Mrs. Petrakos reports that she sent a preliminary budget to Mr. Capetanakis and Mr. Leonardos

that CSBM created based on the expansion revision that was approved along with our renewal
this year. Mr. Leonardos asked Mrs. Petrakos what additional rent expense can Park Slope

afford once we begin the expansion project to create temporary classes under the building until

a facility is built. The budget that CSBM prepared for us is based on the projected enrollment
per our charter revision to increase in year 2025-2026. The numbers are based on an

added class in each grade each year. The first year we added kindergarten and first grade (50
students). Basically, we will incur $100,000.00 in additional rental expenses in year 2025-
2026. It comes out to $8,500.00 a month. Mr. Leonardos asked how many students is this

based on? Mrs. Petrakos answered that this is based on 554 students in year 2025-2026.

Currently we have 498 students not including the eighteen Pre-K students. Mr. Leonardos
reports that the landlord feels comfortable to allow us to build in the parking lot five-six

classrooms. Of course the community will be losing their parking but they are looking to
accommodate us. This is the reason why Mr. Capetanakis and I need a preliminary budget to
see what the numbers are to pick up the discussion. Mr. Leonardos states that based on

information obtained from architects they did not say anything about not being able to build
temporary classrooms in the parking lot. The build out cost is not accounted for in this report.

Mrs. Petrakos expressed her concern for egress points and dismissal procedures. Mrs. Svokos
asked if there is a separate code for schools. Mr. Leonardos answers that there needs to be two

emergency exits. Mr. Newman states that we are investing time, energy and resources and we

need clarity on what direction we are going to take. There has to be a preliminary step to make

sure that all of the things that we are talking about will pass code whether or not we can

actually do this and require someone who knows how to do this and what the codes are to keep

the school going while students are in the building. Mrs. Petrakos and Mr. Leonardos

agreed. From what Mr. Leonardos understands it will not be a violation if we provide a

path. Mr. Newman wants to make sure the school meets all regulatory legal construction

educational requirements. He thinks it makes sense to hire someone to take on the liability to

assure us that it is safe to move forward. Mr. Leonardos agreed and stated that the landlord

said that it can be done. Specifically that there can be a leading to the street with at least two
doors where the students can exit.

Mr. Capetanakis adds that the more he thinks of this he does not see how this can be done

without the landlords requiring the corner property. Mrs. Petrakos stated that we have the five

year charter term to fulfill it. In the event that we want to extend it into the third year of the

charter term which would be 2026-2027 we may ask SED if we can do so. Mr. Leonardos adds
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Board of Trustees 
Hellenic Classical Charter Schools

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hellenic Classical Charter Schools
(a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 
2025 and 2024, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for 
the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of Hellenic Classical Charter Schools as of June 30, 2025 and 2024, and 
the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent 
of Hellenic Classical Charter Schools and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, 
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Hellenic 
Classical Charter Schools’ ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date 
that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user 
based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and 
Government Auditing Standards, we:

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit.

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of  Hellenic Classical Charter Schools' 
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Hellenic Classical Charter Schools' ability 
to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal 
control related matters that we identified during the audit.
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Report on Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as 
a whole. The accompanying schedules of activities and functional expenses by school for the 
year ended June 30, 2025 on pages 18 through 20 are presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is 
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated                                            
October 14, 2025, on our consideration of Hellenic Classical Charter Schools' internal control 
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is 
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
Hellenic Classical Charter Schools' internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. 
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering Hellenic Classical Charter Schools' internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance.  

Harrison, New York
October 14, 2025



ASSETS 2025 2024

Current Assets

Cash 2,512,976$       2,603,360$      

Grants and contracts receivable 2,435,861         2,187,796

Employee Retention Credit receivable 473,013            473,013
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 150,473            254,258           

      Total Current Assets 5,572,323         5,518,427        

Property and equipment, net 8,914,316 9,335,594

Right of use assets - operating leases, net 86,675,002 87,850,483

Right of use assets - finance lease, net 79,659 58,896             

Security deposit 138,500 138,500
Restricted cash 200,000            200,000           

101,579,800$   103,101,900$  

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 589,857$          607,436$         

Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 2,171,204         1,935,387        

Due to related party 1,082,977         885,427           

Economic Injury Disaster loan payable 4,032                3,816               

Operating lease liabilities 572,134            555,837
Finance lease liabilities 26,082              14,088             

     Total Current Liabilities 4,446,286         4,001,991        

Economic Injury Disaster loan payable, less current portion 132,942 140,514           

Operating lease liabilities, less current portion 89,383,725       89,863,890      
Finance lease liabilities, less current portion 55,254              44,915             

     Total Liabilities 94,018,207       94,051,310      

Net assets, without donor restrictions 7,561,593         9,050,590        

101,579,800$   103,101,900$  

June 30,

Hellenic Classical Charter Schools

Statements of Financial Position

See notes to financial statements
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2025 2024

REVENUE AND SUPPORT

State and local per pupil operating revenue 18,925,052$     16,921,865$     

State and local per pupil facilities funding 822,000            468,687            

Universal pre-kindergarten 406,002            405,402            

Federal grants 259,656            680,146            

Federal IDEA and E-rate 177,187            203,960            

State and city grants 62,071              52,210              

Contributions and grants 252,259            221,368            
Other revenue 109,373            140,480            

     Total Revenue and Support 21,013,600       19,094,118       

EXPENSES

Program Services

  Regular education 13,993,441       12,890,268       
  Special education 4,701,875         4,300,114         

     Total Program Services 18,695,316       17,190,382       

Supporting Services

  Management and general 3,686,921         3,272,240         
  Fundraising 120,360            85,069              

     Total Expenses 22,502,597       20,547,691       

     Change in Net Assets (1,488,997)       (1,453,573)       

NET ASSETS

Beginning of year 9,050,590         10,504,163       

End of year 7,561,593$       9,050,590$       

Year Ended June 30,

Hellenic Classical Charter Schools

Statements of Activities

See notes to financial statements
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Management

No. of Regular Special and

Positions Education Education Total General Fundraising Total

Personnel Services Costs

Administrative staff personnel 28 1,087,898$   568,742$     1,656,640$   981,632$     45,497$       2,683,769$   

Instructional personnel 120 6,036,782     2,001,872    8,038,654     -                  -                  8,038,654     
Non - instructional personnel 14 -                   -                  -                   831,418       -                  831,418        

      Total Personnel Service Costs 162 7,124,680     2,570,614    9,695,294     1,813,050    45,497         11,553,841   

Fringe benefits and payroll taxes 1,836,310     594,767       2,431,077     405,407       23,734         2,860,218     

Retirement 98,292         31,765         130,057        21,878         1,259           153,194        

Legal services 85,773         27,173         112,946        20,447         1,005           134,398        

Accounting and auditing services 120,553        36,030         156,583        280,141       1,049           437,773        

Other professional and consulting services 266,467        69,945         336,412        24,170         1,285           361,867        

Building and land rent 2,570,302     800,950       3,371,252     645,747       27,893         4,044,892     

Repairs and maintenance 203,581        64,578         268,159        48,320         2,401           318,880        

Insurance 143,082        46,207         189,289        31,926         1,827           223,042        

Utilities 417,709        132,135       549,844        100,054       4,868           654,766        

Supplies and materials 293,439        67,018         360,457        -                  -                  360,457        

Equipment and furnishings 16,336         3,825           20,161          5,156           -                  25,317          

Staff development 34,824         8,247           43,071          2,812           94                45,977          

Marketing and recruiting 60,013         19,330         79,343          13,518         757              93,618          

Technology 13,365         3,344           16,709          69,128         -                  85,837          

Student service 107,882        30,872         138,754        10,477         810              150,041        

Office expense 118,372        37,159         155,531        26,339         1,370           183,240        

Depreciation and amortization 460,315        151,297       611,612        96,152         6,321           714,085        
Other 22,146         6,619           28,765          72,199         190              101,154        

      Total Expenses 13,993,441$ 4,701,875$  18,695,316$ 3,686,921$  120,360$     22,502,597$ 

Hellenic Classical Charter Schools

Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Program Services

See notes to financial statements
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Program Services Management
No. of Regular Special and

Positions Education Education Total General Fundraising Total

Personnel Services Costs
Administrative staff personnel 25 1,091,125$   228,645$     1,319,770$   862,828$     43,481$       2,226,079$   
Instructional personnel 118 5,422,986     1,973,133    7,396,119      -  - 7,396,119     
Non - instructional personnel 12  -  -  - 695,382        - 695,382        

      Total Personnel Service Costs 155 6,514,111     2,201,778    8,715,889     1,558,210    43,481         10,317,580   

Fringe benefits and payroll taxes 1,709,338     581,639       2,290,977     401,796       11,176         2,703,949     
Retirement 94,445          32,281         126,726        21,319         589              148,634        
Legal services 60,477          20,373         80,850          15,474         436              96,760          
Accounting and auditing services 203,643        68,861         272,504        125,921       1,416           399,841        
Other professional and consulting services 254,309        68,778         323,087        30,761         867              354,715        
Building and land rent 2,420,488     811,028       3,231,516     646,011       18,292         3,895,819     
Repairs and maintenance 180,454        60,954         241,408        45,167         1,268           287,843        
Insurance 137,789        46,709         184,498        33,467         935              218,900        
Utilities 329,145        117,211       446,356        91,813         2,595           540,764        
Supplies and materials 255,506        54,007         309,513         -  - 309,513        
Equipment and furnishings 41,493          9,360           50,853          14,210          - 65,063          
Staff development 30,574          6,932           37,506          648              18                38,172          
Marketing and recruiting 55,318          18,637         73,955          14,147         398              88,500          
Technology 10,989          2,467           13,456          75,911          - 89,367          

Student service 60,024          18,342         78,366          9,666           266              88,298          

Office expense 69,661          22,705         92,366          69,048         439              161,853        
Depreciation and amortization 424,200        144,981       569,181        95,813         2,649           667,643        
Other 38,304          13,071         51,375          22,858         244              74,477          

      Total Expenses 12,890,268$ 4,300,114$  17,190,382$ 3,272,240$  85,069$       20,547,691$ 

Hellenic Classical Charter Schools

Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended June 30, 2024

See notes to financial statements
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2025 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets (1,488,997)$   (1,453,573)$   

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets

to net cash from operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 688,404         666,390         

Amortization of right of use asset - operating leases 1,267,778      1,267,828      

Amortization of right of use asset - finance lease 25,681           1,253             

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

  Grants and contracts receivable (248,065)        638,777         

  Due from related party -                     154,748         

  Due to related party 197,550         885,427         

  Prepaid expenses and other current assets 103,785         (96,469)          

  Accounts payable and accrued expenses (17,579)          68,205           

  Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 235,817         180,590         
  Operating lease liabilities (556,165)        (423,074)        

 Net Cash from Operating Activities 208,209         1,890,102      

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITY

Purchases of property and equipment (267,126)        (288,992)        

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY

Principal payments on finance lease liability (24,111)          (221)               
Repayment of loan payable (7,356)            (3,240)            

 Net Cash from Financing Activities (31,467)          (3,461)            

 Net Change in Cash and Restricted Cash (90,384)          1,597,649      

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

Beginning of year 2,803,360      1,205,711      

End of year 2,712,976$    2,803,360$    

Year Ended June 30,

Hellenic Classical Charter Schools

Statements of Cash Flows

See notes to financial statements
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1. Organization and Tax Status

Hellenic Classical Charter Schools (the “School”) is a New York State, not-for-profit 
educational corporation operating in New York City pursuant to Article 56 of the Education 
Law of the State of New York.  The accompanying financial statements include the following 
charter schools, collectively referred to as the “School”:

Hellenic Classical Charter School (“HCCS-PS”) operates a charter school in the borough 
of Brooklyn, New York City. On February 7, 2005, the Board of Regents and the Board of 
Trustees of the University of the State of New York (the “Board of Regents”) for and on 
behalf of the State Education Department granted HCCS-PS a charter valid for a term of 
five years and renewable upon expiration. The Board of Regents approved and issued 
several renewals to this charter expiring June 30, 2029. 

Hellenic Classical Charter School – Staten Island (“HCCS-SI”) operates a charter school 
in the borough of Staten Island, New York City. On December 11, 2018, the Board of 
Regents for and on behalf of the State Education Department granted HCCS-SI a charter 
valid for a term of five years and renewable upon expiration by the Board of Regents. The 
Board of Regents approved and issued several renewals to this charter expiring June 30, 
2029.

HCCS-SI and HCCS-PS merged into a single not-for-profit legal entity under HCCS-SI, 
which serves as the sole surviving educational corporation. The plan of merger was 
approved by the Board of Regents on May 1, 2020, and became effective for financial 
purposes on July 1, 2020. Each school is authorized by the Board of Regents under HCCS-
SI charter, as amended to effect the merger, and the surviving entity’s name was changed 
to Hellenic Classical Charter Schools. 

The School was organized to prepare all students intellectually, socially and emotionally, to 
gain entry and succeed in the best high schools in New York City. The School provided 
education to approximately 970 students in grades kindergarten through eighth grade during 
the 2024-2025 academic year.

The School was approved to enter into a two year contract with the New York City  
Department of Education (“NYCDOE”) commencing with the 2020-2021 school year to 
operate a pre-kindergarten program. The School was approved for renewal through June 
30, 2026.This contract is separate from the School's charter and is administered from the 
Department of Education's Division of Early Childhood. The pre-kindergarten program 
provided education to 36 students during the 2024-2025 academic year.

NYCDOE provides free and reduced-price lunches and transportation directly to a majority 
of the School's students. Such costs are not included in these financial statements.

Except for taxes that may be due for unrelated business income, the School is exempt from 
federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and from state 
and local income taxes under comparable laws. 
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2.   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation and Use of Estimates

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”), which requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period.  Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Net Asset Presentation

Resources for various purposes are classified for accounting and reporting purposes into 
net asset categories established according to nature and purpose as follows:

Net assets without donor restrictions – consist of resources available for the general support 
of the School’s operations. Net assets without donor restrictions may be used at the 
discretion of the School’s management and/or the Board of Trustees.

Net assets with donor restrictions – represents amounts restricted by donors for specific 
activities of the School or to be used at a future date. The School records contributions as 
net assets with donor restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit their 
use either through purpose or time restrictions. When a donor restriction expires, that is, 
when a time restriction ends or a purpose restriction is fulfilled, net assets with donor 
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the 
statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Restricted Cash

Under the provisions of its Charter, the School established an escrow account to pay for legal 
and audit expenses that would be associated with a dissolution, should it occur.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported within the 
statements of financial position to the amounts presented in the statements of cash flows at
June 30:

2025 2024

Cash 2,512,976$   2,603,360$   

Restricted cash 200,000        200,000        

2,712,976$   2,803,360$   
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property and Equipment

The School follows the practice of capitalizing all expenditures for property and equipment with 
costs in excess of $5,000 and a useful life in excess of one year. Leasehold improvements are 
amortized over the shorter of the term of the lease, inclusive of all renewal periods, which are 
reasonably assured, or the estimated useful life of the asset. Purchased property and 
equipment are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition. Maintenance and repairs are 
expensed as incurred. All property and equipment purchased with government funding is 
capitalized, unless the government agency retains legal title to such assets, in which case it is
expensed as incurred.  

Depreciation and amortization is recognized on the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives of such assets as follows: 

Computers and equipment 3-5 years
Furniture and fixtures    5 years

Property and equipment are reviewed for impairment if the use of the asset significantly 
changes or another indicator of possible impairment is identified. If the carrying amount for the 
asset is not recoverable, the asset is written down to its fair value. There were no asset 
impairments for the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024.

Leases

The School accounts for leases under Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-02, 
Leases. The School determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception. Leases are included 
in ROU assets and lease liabilities in the statements of financial position. All leases are 
recorded on the statements of financial position.

Operating and finance lease ROU assets and lease liabilities are recognized at the lease 
commencement date based on the present value of the lease payments over the lease term. 
The School has made an accounting policy election to use a risk-free rate, determined using a 
period comparable with that of the lease term, to discount future lease payments. ROU assets 
also include adjustments related to lease payments made and lease incentives received at or 
before the commencement date. At lease commencement, lease liabilities are recognized 
based on the present value of the remaining lease payments and discounted using the 
School’s risk-free rate. Operating and finance lease costs are recognized on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term within building and land rent in the accompanying statements of 
functional expenses. Lease and non-lease components of lease agreements are accounted for 
separately. Lease terms may include options to extend or terminate the lease, and when it is 
reasonably certain that the School will exercise that option, such amounts are included in the 
ROU assets and lease liabilities.

Refundable Advances

The School records certain government operating revenue as refundable advances until 
related services are performed, at which time they are recognized as revenue. 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue and Support

Revenue from the state and local governments resulting from the School’s charter status and 
based on the number of students enrolled is recorded when services are performed in 
accordance with the charter agreement. Federal and other state and local funds are recorded 
when expenditures are incurred and billable to the government agency.

Contribution revenue is recognized when a donor makes a gift to the School or a promise to 
make a gift to the School which is, in substance, unconditional. Grants and other contributions 
of cash are reported as net assets with donor restrictions if they are received with donor 
stipulations. Contributions and grants that are made to support the School’s current year 
activities are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions. Contributions of assets other 
than cash are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation.

Functional Expense Allocation

The majority of expenses can generally be directly identified with the program or supporting 
service to which they relate and are charged accordingly. Other expenses such as personnel 
services costs, fringe benefits and payroll taxes, other professional and consulting services and 
building and land rent have been allocated among program and supporting services 
classifications on the basis of periodic time and expense studies and other basis as determined 
by management of the School to be appropriate.

Marketing and Recruiting

Marketing and recruiting costs are expensed as incurred for staff and student recruiting.  
Marketing and recruiting expense for the years ended  June 30, 2025 and 2024 was $93,618
and $88,500.

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes

The School recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more likely 
than not to be sustained. Management has determined that the School had no uncertain tax 
positions that would require financial statement recognition or disclosure. The School is no 
longer subject to examinations by the applicable taxing jurisdictions for years prior to June 30,
2022.

Subsequent Events Evaluation by Management

Management has evaluated subsequent events for disclosure and/or recognition in the 
financial statements through the date that the financial statements were available to be issued, 
which date is October 14, 2025. 

3. Grants and Contracts Receivable

Grants and contracts receivable consist of federal, state, city entitlements and grants. The 
School expects to collect these receivables within one year. Management has assessed the 
need for an allowance and has determined that such an allowance is not necessary. 
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4. Related Party Transactions (not disclosed elsewhere)

The School is related to Friends of Hellenic Classical Charter Schools, Inc. (“FOH”), a New 
York State not-for-profit education corporation who both share common management and 
board members. The School is supported by FOH through financial and facility related needs. 
The net balance due to FOH at June 30, 2025 and 2024 was $1,082,977 and $885,427.

Lease agreements were transferred to FOH (see Note 8) and new subleases were entered into 
between FOH (sublandlord) and the School (subtenant).

On February 26, 2021, FOH entered into an agreement for tax-exempt revenue bonds with 
Build NYC Resource Corporation to fund the construction of a new building for the Staten 
Island location and certain leasehold improvements for the Park Slope location. The agreement 
requires the School to maintain two financial covenants, beginning with the year ended June 
30, 2022. The School is in compliance with the financial covenants for the years ended June 
30, 2025 and 2024. 

5. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, net consists of the following at June 30:

2025 2024

Furniture and fixtures 1,166,817$   1,057,420$   

Computers and equipment 771,199        754,729        

Leasehold improvements 16,136,211   15,994,952   

18,074,227   17,807,101   

Accumulated depreciation

         and amortization (9,159,911)    (8,471,507)    

8,914,316$   9,335,594$   

6.   Liquidity and Availability of Financial Assets

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions 
limiting their use within one year of the statements of financial position date, are comprised of 
the following at June 30:

      

2025 2024

Cash 2,512,976$   2,603,360$   

Grants and contracts receivable 2,435,861 2,187,796     

Employee Retention Credit receivable 473,013        473,013        

5,421,850$   5,264,169$   

As part of the School’s liquidity management plan, the status of grants and contracts receivable 
is monitored regularly and any excess cash is held in highly liquid instruments until it is required 
for operational use. The School will continue to rely on funding received from the New York 
Department of Education to cover its future operating costs (see Note 10).
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7. Employee Benefit Plan

The School maintains a defined contribution retirement plan qualified under Internal Revenue 
Code 401(k) for the benefit of its eligible employees. Under the plan, the School provides 
matching contributions up to 3% of annual compensation on a discretionary basis. The amount 
charged to operations for fees and matching contributions to this plan amounted to $153,194
and $148,634 for the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024.

8.  Lease Commitments

Facility Leases

On July 17, 2019, the School entered into a three year non-cancelable operating lease for 
the facility space which expired on July 31, 2022 and paid a security deposit in the amount 
of $126,500. Annual lease payments commence at $200,292 per annum for the first year 
and increase incrementally through the life of the lease. The School received a rent 
concession in the amount of $110,000 for broker fees. The credit will be applied against rent 
payments due over the lease. In September 2020, the School amended this lease for 
additional space, to build a new facility, expiring on July 31, 2067. The School has two ten 
year options to renew the lease. Under this lease, the School will receive a rent abatement 
in the amount of $784,000. On February 26, 2021, the lease agreement was transferred to 
FOH (see Note 4) and a new sublease agreement between FOH (sublandlord) and the 
School (subtenant) was executed effective March 1, 2021 and ending on July 31, 2067.  

On March 14, 2012, the School entered into a thirty-year non-cancelable operating lease for 
the facility space expiring on June 30, 2042. The School has the option to extend the lease 
for ten years and another nine years. Annual lease payments commence at $500,000 per 
annum for the first two years and increase incrementally through the life of the lease. The 
School obtained a credit of $3,900,060 as a result of improvements to the building 
completed in September 2014. The credit will be applied against rent payments due over the 
first 15 years of the lease commencing after construction is completed and amortized over 
30 years. On February 26, 2021, the lease agreement was transferred to FOH (see Note 4) 
and a new sublease agreement between FOH (sublandlord) and the School (subtenant) was 
executed effective March 1, 2021 and ending on June 30, 2047.  

Equipment leases

The School leases various copy machines under non-cancelable operating leases expiring 
in various years through 2028.

Right of use assets consist of the following at June 30, 2025:

Operating Leases Finance Leases

Right of use assets 90,452,743$      106,593$           

Less: accumulated amortization (3,777,741)         (26,934)              

86,675,002$      79,659$             
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8. Lease Commitments (continued)

Weighted average remaining lease term (years)
      Operating leases                                                37.40 years
      Finance lease                                                       2.99 years

Weighted average discount rate 
      Operating leases                                           3.11%
      Finance lease                                                       4.22%

Right of use assets consist of the following at June 30, 2024:

Operating Leases Finance Leases

Right of use assets 90,360,446$      60,149$             

Less: accumulated amortization (2,509,963)         (1,253)                

87,850,483$      58,896$             

Weighted average remaining lease term (years)
      Operating leases                                                38.35 years
      Finance lease                                                       3.92 years

Weighted average discount rate 
      Operating leases                                           3.11%
      Finance lease                                                       4.52%

The future minimum lease payments under the facility and equipment leases is as follows for 
the years ending June 30: 

      

Operating Leases Finance Lease

2026 3,354,459$        28,908$             

2027 4,035,924          28,908               

2028 4,141,552          27,541               

2029 4,205,836          1,042                 

2030 4,238,944          -                         

Thereafter 128,192,006      -                         

Total minimum lease payments 148,168,721      86,399               

Present value discount (58,212,862)       (5,063)                

Present value of lease liabilities 89,955,859        81,336               

Current portion (572,134)            (26,082)              

Lease liabilities, less current portion 89,383,725$      55,254$             
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8. Lease Commitments (continued)
      
Components of the lease cost are included in building and land rent for operating leases and 
office expense for finance leases in the accompanying statement of functional expenses for 
the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024:-

      

2025 2024

Operating Leases 4,044,892$        3,895,819$        

Finance leases 29,435               1,474                 

      Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information consists of the following at June 30:

       

2025 2024

Cash paid for amounts included in the 

measurement of operating lease liabilities 3,351,373$        3,307,725$        

Operating cash flows from finance leases 3,691                 221                    

Finance cash flows from finance leases 23,133               1,146                 

ROU assets obtained in exchange 

for operating lease obligation 89,797               -                         

ROU assets obtained in exchange 

for finance lease obligation 45,402               58,782               

9. Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to concentrations of credit and market 
risk consist principally of cash and restricted cash on deposit with financial institutions, which 
from time to time may exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) limit. The 
School does not believe that a significant risk of loss due to the failure of a financial institution 
presently exists. At June 30, 2025 and 2024, approximately $2,376,000 and $2,516,000 of 
cash and restricted cash was maintained with an institution in excess of FDIC limits. 

10. Concentration of Revenue and Support

The School receives a substantial portion of its support and revenue from the New York City 
Department of Education. For the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, the School received 
approximately 96% and 93% of its total revenue and support from the New York City 
Department of Education. If the charter school laws were modified, reducing or eliminating 
these revenues, the School’s finances could be materially adversely affected.

11. Contingency

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by the funding sources.  Such audits 
might result in disallowances of costs submitted for reimbursement. Management is of the 
opinion that such cost disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the 
accompanying financial statements. Accordingly, no amounts have been provided in the 
accompanying financial statements for such potential claims.
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12. Employee Retention Credit Receivable

During 2022, the School qualified for the Employee Retention Credit (“ERC”), which is a 
refundable payroll tax credit for employers who had operations fully or partially suspended due 
to orders from a governmental authority or whose revenues decreased by a specific threshold. 
When eligible, an entity can claim a refund in excess of the payroll taxes paid based upon the 
amount of qualified wages and health insurance paid. Because the amount of the credit is in 
excess of the payroll taxes paid, the ERC is considered a conditional government grant. The 
School has recognized the ERC revenue and corresponding receivable in the amount of 
$473,013 as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022. The ERC receivable is included in the 
accompanying statements of financial position.

The School’s Employee Retention Credit (“ERC”) funds recognized are subject to audit in the 
current and future years. As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that the ERC 
funds recognized, or a portion thereof, may need to be repaid in the future.

13. Economic Injury Disaster Loan Payable

On June 2, 2020, the School qualified for and received a loan pursuant to the Economic 
Injury Disaster Loan Program (the “EIDL Program”), a program implemented by the U.S. 
Small Business Administration under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security 
Act, from a qualified EIDL Program lender, for an aggregate principal amount of $150,000 
(the "EIDL loan”). The EIDL loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 2.75% per annum. Monthly 
installment payments including principal and interest of $641 twelve months from date of 
loan and matures June 2, 2050. The EIDL loan is secured with a security interest in the 
School’s tangible and intangible personal property, and is guaranteed by the U.S. Small 
Business Administration. EIDL program loan proceeds are to be used solely as working 
capital to alleviate economic injury caused by disaster occurring in the month of January 
2020 and continuing thereafter.

The future minimum payments under the loan are as follows for the years ending June 30:

     

2026 4,032$      

2027 4,144        

2028 4,260        

2029 4,378        

2030 4,500        

Thereafter 115,660    

136,974    

Current portion (4,032)       

Long term portion 132,942$  

* * * * *
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HCCS - PS HCCS - SI Total

REVENUE AND SUPPORT

State and local per pupil operating revenue 9,788,513$    9,136,539$   18,925,052$  

State and local per pupil facilities funding -                    822,000 822,000         

Universal pre-kindergarten 184,201 221,801 406,002         

Federal grants 177,885 81,771 259,656         

Federal IDEA and E-rate 90,623 86,564 177,187         

State and city grants 34,097 27,974 62,071          

Contributions and grants 199,254 53,005 252,259         
Other revenue 87,997          21,376          109,373         

     Total Revenue and Support 10,562,570    10,451,030   21,013,600    

EXPENSES

Program Services

  Regular education 7,373,239 6,620,202 13,993,441    
  Special education 2,445,809      2,256,066     4,701,875      

     Total Program Services 9,819,048      8,876,268     18,695,316    

Supporting Services

  Management and general 1,719,110 1,967,811 3,686,921      
  Fundraising 62,887          57,473          120,360         

     Total Expenses 11,601,045    10,901,552   22,502,597    

     Change in Net Assets (1,038,475)    (450,522)       (1,488,997)    

NET ASSETS

Beginning of year 9,515,707      (465,117)       9,050,590      

End of year 8,477,232$    (915,639)$     7,561,593$    

Hellenic Classical Charter Schools

Schedule of Activities by School

Year Ended June 30, 2025

See independent auditors' report
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Management

No. of Regular Special and

Positions Education Education Total General Fundraising Total

Personnel Services Costs

Administrative staff personnel 13 338,603$         231,115$     569,718$     478,166$     16,752$       1,064,636$   

Instructional personnel 65 3,725,703        1,136,712    4,862,415    -                   -                   4,862,415     

Non - instructional personnel 7 -                       -                   -                   367,222       -                   367,222        

      Total Personnel Service Costs 85 4,064,306        1,367,827    5,432,133    845,388       16,752         6,294,273     

Fringe benefits and payroll taxes 1,160,449        392,767       1,553,216    214,239       17,853         1,785,308     

Retirement 60,305             20,411         80,716         11,133         928              92,777          

Legal services 38,822             13,140         51,962         7,167           597              59,726          

Accounting and auditing services -                       -                   -                   225,373       -                   225,373        

Other professional and consulting services 151,971           38,438         190,409       10,311         860              201,580        

Building and land rent 827,212           279,979       1,107,191    152,716       12,726         1,272,633     

Repairs and maintenance 94,293             31,914         126,207       17,408         1,450           145,065        

Insurance 86,986             29,441         116,427       16,059         1,339           133,825        

Utilities 184,196           62,343         246,539       34,005         2,836           283,380        

Supplies and materials 157,293           31,967         189,260       -                   -                   189,260        

Equipment and furnishings 7,008               1,424           8,432           1,904           -                   10,336          

Staff development 22,399             4,658           27,057         144              12                27,213          

Marketing and recruiting 35,188             11,910         47,098         6,496           542              54,136          

Technology 1,783               362              2,145           37,166         -                   39,311          

Student service 71,558             21,347         92,905         9,290           774              102,969        

Office expense 62,868             20,570         83,438         10,640         886              94,964          

Depreciation and amortization 346,602           117,311       463,913       63,988         5,332           533,233        

Other -                       -                   -                   55,683         -                   55,683          

      Total Expenses 7,373,239$      2,445,809$  9,819,048$  1,719,110$  62,887$       11,601,045$ 

Hellenic Classical Charter Schools

Schedule of Functional Expenses - HCCS - PS

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Program Services

See independent auditors' report
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Management
No. of Regular Special and

Positions Education Education Total General Fundraising Total

Personnel Services Costs
Administrative staff personnel 15 749,295$        337,627$     1,086,922$  503,466$     28,745$       1,619,133$     
Instructional personnel 55 2,311,079       865,160       3,176,239    -                   -                   3,176,239       
Non - instructional personnel 7 -                      -                   -                   464,196       -                   464,196          

      Total Personnel Service Costs 77 3,060,374       1,202,787    4,263,161    967,662       28,745         5,259,568       

Fringe benefits and payroll taxes 675,861          202,000       877,861       191,168       5,881           1,074,910       
Retirement 37,987            11,354         49,341         10,745         331              60,417            
Legal services 46,951            14,033         60,984         13,280         408              74,672            
Accounting and auditing services 120,553          36,030         156,583       54,768         1,049           212,400          
Other professional and consulting services 114,496          31,507         146,003       13,859         425              160,287          
Building and land rent 1,743,090       520,971       2,264,061    493,031       15,167         2,772,259       
Repairs and maintenance 109,288          32,664         141,952       30,912         951              173,815          
Insurance 56,096            16,766         72,862         15,867         488              89,217            
Utilities 233,513          69,792         303,305       66,049         2,032           371,386          
Supplies and materials 136,146          35,051         171,197       -                   -                   171,197          
Equipment and furnishings 9,328              2,401           11,729         3,252           -                   14,981            
Staff development 12,425            3,589           16,014         2,668           82                18,764            

Marketing and recruiting 24,825            7,420           32,245         7,022           215              39,482            

Technology 11,582            2,982           14,564         31,962         -                   46,526            
Student service 36,324            9,525           45,849         1,187           36                47,072            
Office expense 55,504            16,589         72,093         15,699         484              88,276            

Depreciation and amortization 113,713          33,986         147,699       32,164         989              180,852          
Other 22,146            6,619           28,765         16,516         190              45,471            

      Total Expenses 6,620,202$     2,256,066$  8,876,268$  1,967,811$  57,473$       10,901,552$   

Hellenic Classical Charter Schools

Schedule of Functional Expenses - HCCS - SI
Year Ended June 30, 2025

Program Services

See independent auditors' report
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other 
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With 
Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditors' Report

Board of Trustees 
Hellenic Classical Charter Schools

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of Hellenic Classical Charter Schools (the “School”) (a nonprofit organization), which 
comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2025, and the related statements of 
activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to 
the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 14, 2025.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion 
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the School’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528 I Tel: 914.381.8900 I Fax: 914.381.8910 I www.pkfod.com 

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any responsibility or 
liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or 
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the organization’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization’s 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose.

Harrison, New York
October 14, 2025



PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528 I Tel: 914.381.8900 I Fax: 914.381.8910 I www.pkfod.com 

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any responsibility or liability for 
the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms.

Board of Trustees
Hellenic Classical Charter Schools

Auditors’ Communication on Internal Control 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Hellenic Classical Charter Schools
(the "School") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2025, in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the School’s internal control over 
financial reporting (“internal control”) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 
timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be deficiencies, significant 
deficiencies, or material weaknesses and, therefore, there can be no assurance that all such 
deficiencies have been identified.

We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses as 
defined above.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the audit committee, 

the Board of Trustees, The State Education Department of the State University of New York, and others 

within the School, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 

specified parties.

We would like to take this opportunity to acknowledge the courtesy and assistance extended to us by 
the personnel of the School during the course of our audit.

Harrison, New York
October 14, 2025
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ESCROW ACCOUNT
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Contact Us

Client Services 800.325.2424

Mailing  Address
P.O. Box 191
Waterbury, CT 06720-0191

Online Access websterbank.com

Reminder: Updates to Webster Bank Funds Availability Policy
 
As previously communicated, our Funds Availability Policy was updated effective July 1, 2025, to align with Federal
guidelines. Since our last notice, the policy has been further streamlined for easier understanding and implementation.
For a summary of the updates, please refer to the table on the last page of this statement. To view the full policy, please
visit WebsterBank.com and click the Disclosures and Fees link at the bottom of any page. If you have any questions,
please give us a call or stop by. We are here to help.
 

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTS

ACCOUNT TYPE ACCOUNT NUMBER ENDING BALANCE

COMMERCIAL CKG W ANALYSIS XXXXXX1901 $100,000.00

COMMERCIAL CKG W ANALYSIS - XXXXXX1901

Account Summary
Date Description Amount

06/01/2025 Beginning Balance $100,000.00

0 Credit(s) This Period $0.00

0 Debit(s) This Period $0.00

06/30/2025 Ending Balance $100,000.00

 
Description Amount

Average Ledger Balance $100,000.00

Average Available Balance $100,000.00

Daily Balances

Date Amount

05/31/2025 $100,000.00

Overdraft and Returned Item Fees

Total for this period Total year-to-date

Total Overdraft Fees $0.00 $0.00

Total Returned Item Fees $0.00 $0.00

Statement Ending 06/30/2025
HELLENIC CLASSICAL CHARTER   Page 1 of 2

5BFE9B548C08254D99569240B3FC79A8 20250630 Unknown
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Hellenic Classical Charter Schools (HCCS) 

Park Slope (PS), est. 2005 

Staten Island (SI), est. 2018 

 

Entry 12b – Additional Financial Documents 
 

A Federal Single Audit was not required because the school did not expend federal funds of 
more than the $750,000 threshold. 

http://www.hccs-nys.org/
http://www.hccs-nys.org/


Instructions

See Monthly Inspection Report for Details

Report of Inspection / Test for Asset - Fire Pump 1

Fire Pump Information

Pump (Horizontal or Vertical): Vertical

Pump Manufacturer AC Fire pump

Shop/Serial Number 13-066914-01-01/qkp378

Rated GPM 500

Rated Pressure 70

Rated 150 Pressure 61

Rated 0 Pressure 80

Rated RPM 3550

Suction City

Driver, (electric or diesel engine) Electric

Engine Manufacturer Weg

Engine Shop/Serial Number 03abr13 1019183445

Engine Model 284jp

Rated Horsepower 30

Rated Speed 3540

Rated Voltage 200/400

Rated Amps 79.3/39.7

Phase Cycles 3/60

Service Factor 1.15

Controller Manufacturer Tornatech

Controller Shop/Serial Number z 122021

Controller Model Gpa-208/30/3/60

Pump Room/Pump House Inspection

Clean, dry, orderly, proper lighting, and free of
debris/stored items?

 Yes

 No

 NA

Adequately heated?  Yes

 No

 NA

Report of Inspection / Test
Five Years NFPA 25

07-16-2025
Property
Hellenic Classical Charter
P074665
646 5th Avenue  
Brooklyn  NY 11215

Print Date: 07-16-2025

Conducted by: Nicholas Demetriou

Capitol Fire Sprinkler
51-51 59th Place
Woodside NY 11377

Copyright 2025 Inspect Point
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Pump Inspection

Is the fire pump suction control valve(s) fully open and
secured/tampered in open position?

 Yes

 No

 NA

Is the fire pump discharge control valve(s) fully open and
secured/tampered in open position?

 Yes

 No

 NA

Is the fire pump bypass control valves fully open and
secured/tampered in open position?

 Yes

 No

 NA

Is the fire pump test header control valve closed and
secured/tampered in closed position?

 Yes

 No

 NA

Are the fire pump flow meter control valves closed and
secured/tampered in closed position?

 Yes

 No

 NA

Are all pump control valves properly identified  Yes

 No

 NA

Are all pump room pipes, fittings, and valves free of
leaks?

 Yes

 No

 NA

Are pump room pipe hangers and supports in good
condition?

 Yes

 No

 NA

Does the fire pump shaft coupling appear to be properly
aligned? (Horizontal Pumps Only)

 Yes

 No

 NA

Is the oil level in vertical motor sight glass in normal
range? (Vertical turbine pumps only)

 Yes

 No

 NA

Monthly Churn Testing

Fire Pump starts in response to pressure drop?  Yes

 No

 NA

Fire Pump starting pressure: (PSI) 90

Log static suction pressure: (PSI) 53 Log static system pressure: (PSI) 121

Log suction operating pressure: 49 Log discharge operating pressure (before adjusting
casing relief valve):

132

Is the jockey pump operational?  Yes

 No

 NA

Was the jockey pump and fire pump automatically
started via pressure drop?

 Yes

 No

 NA

Jockey pump pressure settings: (PSI) 110/120 Are the fire pump gauges compliant and NOT outdated
as per NFPA25?

 Yes

 No

 NA

Are the gauges on the sensing line compliant and NOT
outdated as per NFPA25?

 Yes

 No

 NA

Are the gauges on the jockey pump (if applicable)
compliant and NOT outdated as per NFPA25?

 Yes

 No

 NA

Does the fire pump operate without a shutoff timer?  Yes

 No

 NA

Testing

Packing boxes, bearing and pump casing free from
overheating?

 Yes

 No

 NA

Casing relief valve flows in drain while fire pump is
running?

 Yes

 No

 NA

Were there no vibrations that could damage any fire
pump component?

 Yes

 No

 NA

Are the fire pump gland(s) showing slight discharge of
water? (1 drop per second recommendation)

 Yes

 No

 NA

Report of Inspection / Test
Five Years NFPA 25

07-16-2025
Property
Hellenic Classical Charter
P074665
646 5th Avenue  
Brooklyn  NY 11215

Print Date: 07-16-2025

Conducted by: Nicholas Demetriou

Capitol Fire Sprinkler
51-51 59th Place
Woodside NY 11377

Copyright 2025 Inspect Point
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Are the fire pump packing stuffing box drain(s) draining
properly?

 Yes

 No

 NA

Does the fire pump main relief valve (if installed)
pressure appear to be properly adjusted?

 Yes

 No

 NA

Fire Pump returned to automatic?  Yes

 No

 NA

Annual Flow Test

Did the pump perform at all conditions without
objectionable overheating of any component?

 Yes

 No

 NA

For vertical turbine pumps taking the suction from wells,
is the water level capable of being recorded?

 Yes

 No

 NA

Has flow meter been calbrated within last year? (If
applicable)

 Yes

 No

 NA

Did the fire pump meet 100% flow and net PSI  Yes

 No

 NA

Electrical System & Transfer Switch Test

Is the fire pump reverse phase alarm pilot light OFF or
normal phase rotation pilot light ON

 Yes

 No

 NA

Is the isolation switch/circuit breaker closed?  Yes

 No

 NA

Is the fire pump controller power "ON" pilot light
illuminated?

 Yes

 No

 NA

Is the fire pump automatic transfer switch "NORMAL"
pilot light illuminated?

 Yes

 No

 NA

Observe and record time for motor to accelerate to full
speed (seconds)

3 Does the fire pump motor accelerate without any
abnormalities?

 Yes

 No

 NA

Has a power failure been simulated while the fire pump
was operating at peak flow?

 Yes

 No

 NA

Upon failure, was the fire pump connected to the
standby power source?

 Yes

 No

 NA

Does the fire pump continue to operate at peak flow
while on the standby power source?

 Yes

 No

 NA

Does the fire pump controller connect to normal power
when power was restored?

 Yes

 No

 NA

Additional Comments and Recommendations

Were all deficiencies, comments, and recommendations
reported? Mark "NO" to add.

N/A Were all deficiencies, comments, and recommendations
reported? Mark "NO" to add.

N/A

Report of Inspection / Test
Five Years NFPA 25

07-16-2025
Property
Hellenic Classical Charter
P074665
646 5th Avenue  
Brooklyn  NY 11215

Print Date: 07-16-2025

Conducted by: Nicholas Demetriou

Capitol Fire Sprinkler
51-51 59th Place
Woodside NY 11377
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PERFORMANCE

Rated % Driver speed:
RPM

Total Flow Net Pressure:
PSI

Discharge Pressure:
PSI

Suction Pressure:
PSI

0% 3564 0 90.0 133.0 43.0

50% N/A N/A 0.0 0.0 0.0

100% 3559 500 74.0 121.0 47.0

150% 3540 694 68.0 111.0 43.0

ELECTRIC MOTOR

L1 Voltage L1 Amperes L2 Voltage L2 Amperes L3 Voltage L3 Amperes

0% 206 60 207 61 206 57

50% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

100% 205 78 206 81 205 78

150% 205 88 206 90 205 88

Pump Flow Detail Coefficient (same for all): N/A Nozzle/Orifice Size: 1 3/4 (inches)

PITOT

1 2 3 4 5 6

0% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

50% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

100% 6 6 N/A N/A N/A N/A

150% 10 12 N/A N/A N/A N/A

FLOW

0% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

50% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

100% 250 250 N/A N/A N/A N/A

150% 331 363 N/A N/A N/A N/A

Report of Inspection / Test
Five Years NFPA 25

07-16-2025
Property
Hellenic Classical Charter
P074665
646 5th Avenue  
Brooklyn  NY 11215

Print Date: 07-16-2025
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Questions with Photos and Notes

Fire Pump 1  - Were all deficiencies, comments, and recommendations reported? Mark "NO" to add.

Notes:

Suction 6x4 eccentric reducer installed upside down
Stuffing box drain not piped out
Discharge check and control valve installed in wrong order
Both sensing lines installed with single restricted orifice fittings and outdated gauges. 
Jockey pump sensing line tied to fire pump discharge after control valve
Hose valve on right side of roof manifold has incorrect thread type

Report of Inspection / Test
Five Years NFPA 25
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Deficiencies - Fire Pump 1

Deficiency #1

Are the fire pump packing stuffing box drain(s) draining properly?: No

Notes:

Deficiency #2

Are the gauges on the sensing line compliant and NOT outdated as per
NFPA25?: No

Notes:

Report of Inspection / Test
Five Years NFPA 25
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CO Number: 310136493F     

Certificate of Occupancy

This  certifies  that  the  premises  described  herein  conforms  substantially  to  the  approved  plans and specifications and to the

This document  or a copy shall be available for inspection at  the
building at all reasonable times.

requirements of all applicable laws, rules and regulations for the uses and occupancies specified.  No change of use or occupancy 
shall be made unless a new Certificate of Occupancy is issued.

Borough: BrooklynA.

Address: 224 18TH STREET

Building Identification Number (BIN): 3336795

Block Number: 00634

Lot Number(s): 34  

Building Type:
Altered

Certificate Type: Final

Effective Date: 12/24/2018

B.

C.

D.

E.

Construction classification:

Building Occupancy Group classification:

Multiple Dwelling Law Classification:

No. of stories: Height in feet: No. of dwelling units:

Fire Protection Equipment:

Type and number of open spaces:

This Certificate is issued with the following legal limitations:

4 59

E

None

Fire alarm system, Sprinkler system, Fire Suppression system

0

Parking spaces (10), Parking (1953 square feet)

None

Borough Comments: None

For zoning lot metes & bounds, please see BISWeb.

(2014/2008 Code)

1 (Prior to 1968 Code)

Borough Commissioner Commissioner

DOCUMENT CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE



Page 2 of 2

CO Number: 310136493F     

Certificate of Occupancy

              
       
Floor 
From To

          
Live load 
lbs per 
sq. ft.

 
Maximum
persons 
permitted

          
Dwelling or 
Rooming 
Units

                  
        
Zoning 
use group

Building 
Code 
occupancy 
group

                                                                 
                                                                 
                                                            
Description of use

Permissible Use and Occupancy
All Building Code occupancy group designations are 1968 designations, except RES, COM, or PUB which 

are 1938 Building Code occupancy group designations.

CEL OG6 3 ACCESSORY KITCHEN, BOILER ROOM, 
STORAGE

E

CEL OG190 3 CAFETERIAA-3

OS
P

60 3 PARKING 10 CARSS-2

ME
Z

10034 3 CLASSROOME

001 60134 3 CLASSROOMS, OFFICES, LOBBY, LIBRARY.E001

002 60254 3 CLASSROOMS,OFFICES.E002

003 60243 3 CLASSROOMS, OFFICES, NURSE'S ROOME003

004 100294 3 MULTIPURPOSE SPACE (GYNASIUM, 
LECTURE HALL) STORAGE/MOVABLE STAGE 
AREA, STORAGE ROOMS

A-3

RO
F

40 3 STAIR BULKHEAD AND MECHANICAL 
EQUIPMENT

E

END OF SECTION

FIRE DEPARTMENT APPROVAL DATED MARCH 31, 1969 (INTERIOR FIRE ALARM) AND ACC OUNT #C 706735 ISSUED 1968 (FUEL OIL) 
NO SCENIC ELEMENTS

Borough Commissioner Commissioner

END OF DOCUMENT 310136493/000  12/24/2018 9:41:55 AM
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